
South Dakota Science and Technology Authority 

Annual Board Meeting 

June 28, 2018 

630 East Summit Street 

Lead, SD 57754 





South Dakota Science and Technology Authority Agenda Item: 01 

June 28, 2018 Board Meeting 

Call to Order—Chairperson Casey Peterson 

Recommended Action: 

Informational.   

1A. Call Roll 

Dr. Ani Aprahamian 

Mr. Paul Christen 

Mr. Dana Dykhouse 

Ms. Pat Lebrun 

Mr. Casey Peterson 

Dr. Jim Rankin, ex-officio member 

Mr. Ron Wheeler 

Dr. Robert Wilson 

1B. Introduce Dr. James Rankin 

1C.  Introduce Guests 

1D.  Reminder request for public comment form

Page 3 of 144



 

 

  

 

Page 4 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority             Agenda Item: 02 

June 28, 2018 Board Meeting  

 

Approve Agenda—Chairperson Casey Peterson 

 
 

 
Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve agenda as presented.  

Attached is the SDSTA Board agenda for the June 28, 2018 meeting. 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Page 5 of 144



Page 6 of 144



 

DRAFT AGENDA 
South Dakota Science and Technology Authority 

630 East Summit Street, Lead, South Dakota 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Thursday, June 28, 2018 at 8:00 AM (MT) 

**Yates Education & Outreach Conference Room** 

Public (Open) Session: 1-866-740-1260, Access Code: 7228650, www.readytalk.com 

Please do not place or accept cell phone calls during this meeting. A copy of this agenda has been posted in a manner visible to the public at the entrance to the South Dakota 

Science and Technology Authority office located at 630 East Summit Street, Lead, South Dakota at least 72 hours prior to this meeting. Telephone: (605) 722-8650.   

SDSTA Board of Directors Annual Meeting                                                                                            Page 1 of 3, v4.2 

June 28, 2018  

 

SDSTA Mission: To advance compelling underground, multidisciplinary research in a safe work environment and to inspire and educate 

through science, technology and engineering.  

 Title Report Recommendations 

1.  Call to Order 

A. Call Roll 

B. Introduce Dr. James Rankin 

C. Introduce Guests 

D. Reminder Request for Public 

Comment Form 

-- Chair Casey Peterson Informational 

2.  Approve Agenda -- Chair Casey Peterson 

 

Motion to approve agenda 

3.  Approve Minutes -- Chair Casey Peterson Motion to approve the March 29 and May 

1, 2018 minutes 

4.  Conflicts Disclosure 

 

-- Mr. Tim Engel  

5.  Waiver Under SDCL CH. 3-23 -- Mr. Tim Engel Grant waiver or decline to grant waiver 

6.  State Board of Internal Controls 

Update 

-- Mr. Tim Engel 

 

Informational 

7.  Audit Committee 

A. Annual appointment of members  

B. Annual review of Audit Charter 

-- Chair Casey Peterson Annual appointment of committee 

members and review of Charter per Audit 

Charter dated June 19, 2014 

8.  Financial Report 

A. Financial Summaries 

 

B. FY2019 Budget 

-- Mr. Mike Headley 

-- Ms. Nancy Geary 

 

-- Ms. Nancy Geary 

 

8A. Motion to accept financial report as 

presented 

8B. Motion to approve FY2019 budget as 

presented 

9.  Report from Executive Director 

A. SDSTA Quarterly Update 

B. Declaration of Surplus-misc items 

C. SD National Guard Update 

D. E&O Update and Davis Bahcall 

Scholar Introductions 

-- Mr. Mike Headley 

-- Mr. Mike Headley 

-- Mr. Mike Headley 

-- Ms. Michele Baumann 

-- Dr. June Apaza and Dr. 

Cindy Anderson 

 

Informational 

Informational; reference board packet 

Presentation 

Presentation (DB Scholars to arrive on-

site at 10AM) 

Motion to accept executive director’s 

report 

10.  Approval of Lease for City of Lead 

Maintenance Shop 

-- Mr. Mike Headley 

 

Motion to approve the Lease as presented, 

to authorize the Chairperson, in 
consultation with the Executive Director 

and Legal Counsel, to negotiate the final 

Page 7 of 144

http://www.readytalk.com/


 

DRAFT AGENDA 
South Dakota Science and Technology Authority 

630 East Summit Street, Lead, South Dakota 

Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Thursday, June 28, 2018 at 8:00 AM (MT) 

**Yates Education & Outreach Conference Room** 

Public (Open) Session: 1-866-740-1260, Access Code: 7228650, www.readytalk.com 

Please do not place or accept cell phone calls during this meeting. A copy of this agenda has been posted in a manner visible to the public at the entrance to the South Dakota 

Science and Technology Authority office located at 630 East Summit Street, Lead, South Dakota at least 72 hours prior to this meeting. Telephone: (605) 722-8650.   

SDSTA Board of Directors Annual Meeting                                                                                            Page 2 of 3, v4.2 

June 28, 2018  

 

 Title Report Recommendations 

terms of the Lease, and to authorize the 

Chairperson to execute the final version of 

the Lease. 

11.  Approval of FY2019 Office of Risk 

Management Intergovernmental 

Agreement 

-- Mr. Mike Headley Motion to approve FY2019 
Intergovernmental Agreement between the 

Bureau of Administration, Office of Risk 

Management of the State of SD and 
SDSTA and authorize SDSTA Executive 

Director to sign agreement 

12.  SDSTA Policies and Procedures 

A. Annual Review of P&P 

 

 

B. Annual Statements affirming 

compliance with Financial 

Conflict of Interest Policy 

-- Mr. Mike Headley  

12A. Motion to approve new and updated 

SDSTA policies and procedures as 

presented 

12B. Each board member is to sign a copy 

of the financial conflict of interest 

statement 

13.  Executive Session  

(closed meeting) 

-- Chair Casey Peterson Motion to enter executive session to 

discuss personnel matters and to consult 

with legal counsel concerning contractual 

matters 

14.  Report from Executive Session -- Chair Casey Peterson 

 

Motion to accept executive session report 

 

15.  Motion to Approve Memorandum of 

Understanding 

-- Mr. Mike Headley Motion to approve Memorandum of 

Understanding with Fermi Research 
Alliance, LLC, and to authorize the 

Chairperson, in consultation with the 

Executive Director and Legal Counsel, to 

finalize the terms of the MOU and for the 

Chairperson to sign it. 

16.  Report from Nominating Committee -- Mr. Dana Dykhouse Reference nominating committee minutes 

in board packet 

17.  Election of Officers -- Chair Casey Peterson Motion to accept the report from the 

nominating committee and to elect the 

slate of officers as discussed (follow 

procedure adopted August 2008) 

18.  Confirm date & time of next meeting -- Chair Casey Peterson Tuesday, Sep 18, 2018 at 8:00am (MT) 

19.  Public Comments   

20.  Board Comments   

21.  Adjourn -- Chair Casey Peterson Motion to adjourn 

 

Page 8 of 144

http://www.readytalk.com/


Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Thursday, June 28, 2018 

Please do not place or accept cell phone calls during this meeting. A copy of this agenda has been posted in a manner visible to the public at the entrance to the South Dakota 

Science and Technology Authority office located at 630 East Summit Street, Lead, South Dakota at least 72 hours prior to this meeting. Telephone: (605) 722-8650.   

SDSTA Board of Directors Annual Meeting Page 3 of 3, v4.2

June 28, 2018 

SDSTA Board Member Terms of Service, Committees and Schedule 

Board Members and Terms of Service 

Board Members Appointed Term Expires 

1. Dr. Ani Aprahamian Re-appointed December 10, 2015 December 9, 2021 

2. Mr. Paul Christen Re-appointed August 5, 2016 August 8, 2022 

3. Mr. Dana Dykhouse, Vice-Chair Re-appointed August 1, 2014 August 14, 2020 

4. Ms. Patricia Lebrun, Secretary-

Treasurer 

Re-appointed August 5, 2016 August 8, 2022 

5. Mr. Casey Peterson, Chair Re-appointed August 25, 2015 August 8, 2021 

6. Mr. Ron Wheeler, Vice-Chair Re-appointed April 10, 2014 April 9, 2020 

7. Dr. Robert Wilson August 24, 2015 August 8, 2021 

8. Dr. James Rankin, ex-officio member SDSM&T President as of Jan 8, 2018 

Committees and Members (2017-2018) 

Audit Committee Members: Nominating Committee Members: 

➢ Pat Lebrun-Chair ➢ Ani Aprahamian

➢ Paul Christen ➢ Dana Dykhouse

➢ Casey Peterson, ex-officio

2018 Board Schedule 

Thursday, March 29, 2018 8:00 am (MT) E&O Bldg 

Thursday, June 28, 2018 8:00 am (MT) E&O Bldg 

Tuesday, September 18, 2018 8:00 am (MT) E&O Bldg 

Thursday, December 13, 2018 9:00 am (MT) E&O Bldg, lunch 

Page 9 of 144



Page 10 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority Agenda Item: 03 

June 28, 2018 Board Meeting 

Approve Minutes—Chairperson Casey Peterson 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to approve the Minutes of the March 29 and May 1, 2018 meetings as presented. 

Attached are the SDSTA Board Minutes for the following meetings: 

• March 29, 2018

• May 1, 2018 (telephonic)

Page 11 of 144



Page 12 of 144



March 29, 2018 Board of Directors Meeting   Page 1 of 8

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority • 630 East Summit Street, Lead, SD 57754 • (605) 722-8650 

Final draft to be approved at June 28, 2018 board meeting. 

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, March 29, 2018 

Lead, South Dakota 

The Board of Directors of the South Dakota Science and Technology Authority (SDSTA) convened at 

8:06AM Mountain Time (MT) on Thursday, March 29 in the Education and Outreach (E&O) Building 

Conference Room at the South Dakota Science and Technology Authority, 630 East Summit Street, 

Lead, South Dakota. 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD IN ATTENDANCE 

Mr. Paul Christen (by phone) 

Vice Chairperson Dana Dykhouse (in person) 

Secretary/Treasurer Patricia Lebrun (by phone) 

Chairperson Casey Peterson (in person) 

Dr. James Rankin, ex-officio (by phone) 

Vice Chairperson Ron Wheeler (in person) 

Dr. Robert Wilson (by phone) 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD ABSENT 

Dr. Ani Aprahamian 

SDSTA STAFF 

Mr. Tim Engel, Legal Counsel  

Ms. Nancy Geary, Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Mike Headley, Executive Director 

Dr. Jaret Heise, Science Director 

Ms. Sharon Hemmingson, Business Services and Contracts Manager 

Mr. Larry Jaudon, Environment, Safety and Health Director 

Ms. Mandy Knight, Administrative Services Manager 

Mr. KC Russell, Cultural Diversity Coordinator 

ALSO PRESENT DURING ALL OR PART OF THE MEETING 

Dr. June Apaza, Education and Outreach Director (BHSU/joined by phone) 

Ms. Donna Job, Sanford Lab Homestake Visitor Center Executive Director 

Dr. Peggy Norris, Education and Outreach Deputy Director (BHSU) 

Mr. Alex Portal, Black Hills Pioneer Journalist 

Dr. Ben Sayler, Sanford Science Education Center Co-Director (BHSU/joined by phone) 

ITEM 1. CALL TO ORDER 

Vice-Chairperson Ron Wheeler called the meeting to order at 8:06 AM (MT). He announced that 

Chairperson Casey Peterson will be joining the meeting in person shortly and began the meeting. Roll 

call was held. Attendees present in person included Mr. Dana Dykhouse and Mr. Ron Wheeler; and by 

telephone included Mr. Paul Christen, Ms. Pat Lebrun, Dr. James Rankin and Dr. Robert Wilson. Dr. 

Ani Aprahamian was absent. Vice-Chairperson Wheeler declared that a quorum was present. 

Vice-Chairperson Wheeler then asked audience members to introduce themselves. 

Page 13 of 144



March 29, 2018 Board of Directors Meeting   Page 2 of 8

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority • 630 East Summit Street, Lead, SD 57754 • (605) 722-8650 

Final draft to be approved at June 28, 2018 board meeting. 

ITEM 2. APPROVE AGENDA 

Vice-Chairperson Wheeler asked if there were any modifications to the agenda and hearing none asked 

for a motion to approve the agenda. 

Motion by Mr. Dykhouse and second by Mr. Christen to approve the agenda as presented. Motion 

passed unanimously on a roll call vote. 

ITEM 3. APPROVE MINUTES 

Vice-Chairperson Wheeler asked for any corrections to the Minutes of the December 14, 2017 meeting. 

There were none. 

Motion by Mr. Dykhouse and second by Ms. Lebrun to approve the Minutes of the December 14, 2017 

meeting as presented. Motion passed unanimously on a roll call vote. 

Chairperson Peterson joined the meeting in person at 8:09am.  

Vice-Chairperson Wheeler yielded the chair to Chairperson Peterson. 

ITEM 4. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE 

SDSTA Legal Counsel Mr. Tim Engel said as at several past meetings, this is a chance for any member 

of the board, who feels they have anything that might be construed to be a conflict of interest, to disclose 

it. Hearing none, Mr. Engel announced there are no conflict disclosures for this meeting. 

ITEM 5. DISCLOSURES AND WAIVER UNDER SDCL CH. 3-23 

Mr. Engel said there were no requests for waivers presented so there are none to act on today. 

ITEM 6. CODE OF CONDUCT 

Mr. Engel said the Board of Internal Control has been working on a Code of Conduct for board 

members. Initially, they had adopted a resolution that the relevant provisions of the Bureau of Human 

Resources Code of Conduct should apply to Boards and Commissions. Based upon that resolution, 

SDSTA drafted a Code of Conduct that the SDSTA Board has adopted. The Board of Internal Control 

has been working on an updated Code of Conduct since then that may be more suitable for boards like 

this one. It has gone through several iterations. Mr. Engel said he had one concern with the most recent 

version and presented testimony about that concern at the March Board of Internal Control meeting.  

The Board of Internal Control did not take action at that time. If the proposed change is adopted, Mr. 

Engel said it will likely not result in any changes in SDSTA processes or procedures. He said he 

anticipates action on this subject at the June board meeting. 

ITEM 7. 2018 LEGISLATIVE UPDATE 

Mr. Engel said SDSTA designated two lobbyists to keep an eye on legislation that could affect the 

SDSTA and, if necessary, testify. As usual, this year there was a hearing before the Joint Appropriations 

Committee. Mr. Headley provided a presentation remotely to the committee and it went well.  

Mr. Engel said he watched a variety of bills over the course of the 2018 Legislative Session which 

included subject matters such as open meetings, Historic Preservation and placing a moratorium on 

extraction on minerals in the Black Hills. He said there were two House Bills (HB) that could affect the 

SDSTA: HB1161—update to the International Building Code, and HB1172—require Boards and 

Commissions to allow time for public comment (where on the agenda and how much time is at the 

discretion of the Chairperson) both of which go into effect July 1, 2018. Mr. Engel noted a public 

comment item is included on today’s SDSTA Board agenda. He said Senate Bill (SB) 100, relating to 

federal grants, audits and disclosure of audits, will also have some impact on SDSTA. It requires audits 

Page 14 of 144



March 29, 2018 Board of Directors Meeting   Page 3 of 8

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority • 630 East Summit Street, Lead, SD 57754 • (605) 722-8650 

Final draft to be approved at June 28, 2018 board meeting. 

to be posted to a website and increases some document retention periods. Mr. Engel said he had 

discussed this earlier with SDSTA staff and concluded that it would not be problematic. 

Chairperson Peterson asked what the extended retention period for documents is and Mr. Engel said he 

would confirm and update the board. 

Chairperson Peterson asked if the board had any further questions. There were none. 

ITEM 8. AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT   

ITEM 8A. Ms. Lebrun said the board had received and discussed the Audit Report Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2017 in detail at the December 14 meeting and said it is a clean report with no non-compliance 

and no discrepancies (no findings). She submitted the report for acceptance.  

Motion by Ms. Lebrun and second by Mr. Wheeler to accept the audit report fiscal year ended June 30, 

2017 as presented. Motion passed unanimously on a roll call vote. 

Chairperson Peterson gave kudos to SDSTA Chief Financial Officer Ms. Nancy Geary and her team for 

their work. 

ITEM 8B. Ms. Lebrun said this is a discussion as to whether or not the board should undertake an audit 

of the SDSTA internal control. It is not required, but the Audit Committee feels it prudent to have an 

audit so the SDSTA has a benchmark going forward. In the interest of being certain that the SDSTA is 

well within the parameters that it needs to be, she made a motion to request an internal control audit be 

completed sometime in the fiscal year.  

Dr. Wilson asked how long an internal audit would take as well as the financial impact? Ms. Geary said 

she did not know the cost but the SDSTA’s annual state audit cost is approximately $13,000.  

Ms. Geary requested the internal controls audit not start until after the annual state audit in the fall. Ms. 

Lebrun and Chairperson Peterson agreed that the SDSTA may have to hire an independent firm 

unrelated to the state audit. 

Mr. Engel proposed a substitute motion for an audit to be completed by the end of FY2019, with a cost 

not to exceed $10,000. 

Ms. Lebrun asked the SDSTA to request estimates for the cost of the internal controls audit and 

Chairperson Peterson agreed. He asked if Ms. Lebrun would withdraw her original motion and she 

replied yes. Staff will provide cost estimates at the June meeting. 

Dr. Wilson asked the impact this will have on SDSTA staff time and the value of the audit for the 

money being spent. Chairperson Peterson said the internal control audit will give the board suggestions 

on any lack of or weak controls SDSTA may have and provide a benchmark (especially with an increase 

in federal funds going forward); it will give assurance to outside parties that the SDSTA has done its due 

diligence. This type of audit is not something that is done every year. 

Mr. Christen agreed and said the SDSTA absolutely needs to do this. He said the first audit will take the 

longest time. Ms. Lebrun concurred and said it is prudent to do this.  

Chairperson Peterson thanked the Audit Committee for their work. 

ITEM 9. FINANCIAL REPORT 

Ms. Geary began her report noting that since the last board meeting, the deep well pump lease and the 

asset have been removed from the Balance Sheet. She said at month-end, the SURF Services contract 

through Fermilab for Operations is slightly over budget due to payroll. She then asked if there were any 

questions on the February financials. There were none. 

Page 15 of 144



March 29, 2018 Board of Directors Meeting   Page 4 of 8

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority • 630 East Summit Street, Lead, SD 57754 • (605) 722-8650 

Final draft to be approved at June 28, 2018 board meeting. 

Motion by Mr. Wheeler and second by Mr. Dykhouse to accept the financial report as presented. Motion 

passed unanimously by roll call vote. 

ITEM 10. REPORT FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

ITEM 10A. SDSTA Update 

Mr. Headley said he would like to move items out of order in his report and request SDSTA Science 

Director Dr. Jaret Heise provide an update before discussing the Declaration of Surplus. Mr. Headley 

then proceeded with a slide presentation and discussed safety performance and said there was one 

recordable injury in the last six months. He said things are trending in a good direction and SDSTA is 

seeing fewer injuries onsite. He said new Environment, Safety and Health (ESH) Director Mr. Larry 

Jaudon has been with the SDSTA for a few months now and is doing a wonderful job integrating the 

team.  

He said the SDSTA is spending a great deal of time reorganizing and updating the ESH Manual and has 

put a lot of work into the chapters dealing with work planning and controls as well as facility access. 

A site-wide safety inspection was recently completed jointly with Fermilab and 285 action items were 

generated. These items are being prioritized by size and cost and an implementation schedule will be 

generated. 

Mr. Headley said the SDSTA has been working with Alaris, a company that provides occupational nurse 

and medical support; a full-time occupational nurse has been hired and will start on site in April.  

Mr. Headley provided status updates on 1) Federal funding for FY2018 Appropriation—SURF $15M, 

LBNF/DUNE $95M, LZ $14.1M, and he said the FY2019 President’s budget request includes $114M 

for the Long-Baseline Neutrino Facility/Deep Underground Neutrino Experiment (LBNF/DUNE). Mr. 

Wheeler interjected that he and Mr. Headley have planned a trip to Washington D.C. the end of April to 

discuss the FY2019 budget. Mr. Headley said it is clear that the support on the Hill has been tremendous 

and the work Mr. Ledford and his team are doing is great. 

He then discussed 2) LBNF Construction—installing safety mechanism on the Ross cage, and Kiewit 

Alberici Joint Venture (KAJV) has been working with Fermilab on the pre-excavation work package. 3) 

LZ Construction—Davis Campus construction began in January and will be completed in May; xenon 

gas procurement remains on schedule (received 1,060k of 1,500K liters). 

Mr. Wheeler asked if SDSTA has received all funds for xenon from the foundations? Ms. Geary replied 

no and said SDSTA is awaiting an April receipt of $1M from the University of South Dakota 

Foundation. She said SDSTA does not need any funds at this time from the South Dakota State 

University (SDSU) Foundation. 

Chairperson Peterson noticed on the operational budget that only 24% of the xenon has been delivered. 

Ms. Geary said the delivery is an intentional delay and will not impact the LZ project schedule. SDSTA 

Business Services Manager Ms. Sharon Hemmingson said she will provide the schedule to the board. 

Mr. Headley said the Cultural Advisory Committee (CAC) met on February 28. The SDSTA received 

positive feedback from the committee in regard to the new Cultural Awareness video. It has been 

included as mandatory training for all employees, researchers, contractors and visitors. 

He said Sanford Lab Homestake Visitor Center Executive Director Ms. Donna Job and the team have 

added Native American items for purchase and they have been a nice addition to the gift shop.  

He said SDSTA Cultural Diversity Coordinator Mr. KC Russell has recruited Cheyenne River Sioux 

tribal member Adonnis Martinez, a civil engineering graduate at South Dakota School of Mines and 

Technology (SDSM&T), as a member of the CAC. Mr. Russell continues to be involved with 

Page 16 of 144



March 29, 2018 Board of Directors Meeting   Page 5 of 8

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority • 630 East Summit Street, Lead, SD 57754 • (605) 722-8650 

Final draft to be approved at June 28, 2018 board meeting. 

STARBASE and the West River program has successfully piloted a STARBASE 2.0 (for advance 

science education past the base 5th grade program of STARBASE). 

In regard to Education and Outreach (E&O), Mr. Headley briefly discussed statistics relating to 

curriculum units, classroom presentations and field trips. He also showed a slide on recent student 

comments and said the feedback from others continue to be really strong. He said Dr. Apaza and the 

E&O team are doing a great job getting this information out to the state. 

Mr. Headley said there are three curriculum units in the works: 1) “It’s Electric” is being piloted now, 2) 

“Argon-Transfer Challenge” will be released later this spring and 3) “As a Matter of Fact!” will be 

rolled out later this fall. 

Mr. Wheeler complimented the E&O staff for the work they are doing and outreach to students across 

the state. 

In regard to a previous question concerning the xenon delivery schedule, Ms. Sharon Hemmingson 

recited the following: FY2018/$275,000, FY2019/$1,925,000 and FY2020/$220,000. 

ITEM 10C. Science Update 

Next, Mr. Headley introduced SDSTA Science Director Dr. Jaret Heise who gave a slide presentation on 

current experiments. Dr. Heise provided an update on 1. MAJORANA DEMONSTRATOR (MJD)—

Operations, Electroforming, Results (including the March 26 press release) and Future. 2. Large 

Underground Xenon-ZEPLIN (LZ)—General, Surface, Underground. 3. Compact Accelerator for 

Performing Astrophysical Research (CASPAR)—Commissioning and Operations. 4. Black Hills State 

University Underground Campus (BHUC)—General Operations, Berkeley Low Background Facility 

(manages several low-background counters and LZ SOLO), University of South Dakota/Alabama (Ge-

IV), USD/University of North Carolina/SDSM&T (MALBEK); SENSEI (low mass dark matter 

experiment, not a low-background counter, but interested in locating at Sanford Underground Research 

Facility).  

Dr. Heise concluded with selected other research efforts and gave an update on the following: State 

efforts to support research (new SD Governor’s Centers and NSF EPSCoR proposal have Sanford 

Underground Research Facility connection, SIGMA-V (project funded by DOE Enhanced Geothermal 

Systems based on kISMET-Permeability (k) and Induced Seismicity Management for Energy 

Technologies), GEOX (2000L, 4100L, 4850L), NASA Astrobiology Institute and other biology on the 

different levels underground (800L, 1700L, 2000L, 4100L, 4850L); Others. 

ITEM 10B. Declaration of Surplus Property 

Mr. Headley said the declaration of surplus property is for three Tsurumi pumps that have failed, and the 

cost and repair exceeds the value of the pumps. This brand of pump is not the best choice going forward 

as SDSTA has had better reliability with a different brand of pump. Mr. Headley concluded his report. 

Chairperson Peterson then requested a motion to accept the Executive Director’s report. 

Motion by Mr. Wheeler and second by Mr. Christen to accept the executive director’s report as 

presented. Motion passed unanimously by roll call vote. 

ITEM 11. NEW DESIGN OF THE SDSTA POLICIES AND PROCEDURES/EMPLOYEE 

HANDBOOK 

Mr. Headley said the SDSTA Policies and Procedures Manual has been redesigned and thanked 

Administrative Services Manager Ms. Mandy Knight and Creative Services Developer Mr. Matt Kapust 

for their time and effort towards the manual. Chairperson Peterson said he was impressed with the 

completeness of the manual and the professional look.  

Page 17 of 144



March 29, 2018 Board of Directors Meeting   Page 6 of 8

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority • 630 East Summit Street, Lead, SD 57754 • (605) 722-8650 

Final draft to be approved at June 28, 2018 board meeting. 

ITEM 12. UPDATE ON BUSINESS ADVISORY COUNCIL  

Mr. Wheeler said that a SDSTA Business Advisory Council was discussed over a year ago. 

Dr. Rankin left the meeting by phone at 9:15am. 

He reminded the board that the purpose of the council is to further economic development in South 

Dakota and during the last dialogue it was discussed that a group of high-level participants should be 

formed that will be able to define what opportunities for economic development exist during LBNF 

construction and operation. He said the primary players that will be able to define the suppliers, 

contractors and services required include Fermilab project management, the construction manager for 

LBNF and the experiment itself. He said Fermilab hired a logistics coordinator who began to work with 

contractors in the local area, but the coordinator was recently released from employment. Fermilab plans 

to backfill the position and the new logistics coordinator would be one of the members envisioned 

participating in a future business advisory council. 

ITEM 13. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Motion by Mr. Dykhouse and second by Mr. Wheeler to enter into executive session to discuss personnel 

matters and to consult with legal counsel concerning contractual matters. Motion passed unanimously 

by roll call vote. 

The board recessed at 9:17am for a break, followed by Executive Session and then reconvened at 

10:37am. 

ITEM 14. REPORT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Chairperson Peterson reported that the board consulted with legal counsel concerning contractual and 

legal matters and personnel matters. No action was taken. 

Motion by Mr. Christen and second by Ms. Lebrun to approve the executive session report. Motion 

passed by a roll call vote of five in favor and none against. 

ITEM 15. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION ADJUSTMENT 

Mr. Wheeler reported that the SDSTA Executive Director Headley’s compensation has not been 

changed in a number of years while the rest of the SDSTA staff have received a 6% increase over the 

last three years. Mr. Headley clarified that staff received a 2% increase each year for the last three years. 

Mr. Wheeler said he would like to recommend a compensation adjustment.  

Motion by Vice-Chairperson Dykhouse and second by Mr. Christen to raise the SDSTA Executive 

Director’s compensation by 3 percent, effective March 24, 2018 (the start of the payroll period). Motion 

passed unanimously by roll call vote. 

Dr. Wilson rejoined the meeting by phone at 10:40am. 

Dr. Wilson said he was supportive of the increase and Mr. Headley has done a tremendous job. He said 

he hears the same thing about Mr. Headley when he visits Fermilab. Chairperson Peterson concurred.  

Mr. Headley thanked the board. Mr. Wheeler stated that the board will back Mr. Headley with decisions 

relating to SDSTA and Mr. Headley replied he appreciated their support. 

ITEM 16. SELECT NOMINATING COMMITTEE 

Chairman Peterson said he had asked Dr. Aprahamian and Mr. Dykhouse to serve on the Nominating 

Committee again and they have agreed. Mr. Dykhouse said he will set up a teleconference with Dr. 

Aprahamian in May and have a slate ready for the June board meeting. Chairperson Peterson reminded 

the board that the annual election of officers will be held at the June meeting. 

Page 18 of 144



March 29, 2018 Board of Directors Meeting   Page 7 of 8

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority • 630 East Summit Street, Lead, SD 57754 • (605) 722-8650 

Final draft to be approved at June 28, 2018 board meeting. 

ITEM 17. CONFIRM 2018 BOARD SCHEDULE 

Chairperson Peterson asked if there were any concerns with the board meeting scheduled for Thursday, 

June 28, 2018 at 8:00 A.M. (MT). There were none. 

ITEM 18. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Chairperson Peterson asked if there were any questions or comments from the public. There were none. 

ITEM 19. BOARD COMMENTS 

Dr. Wilson said this was another successful quarter for the lab. The FY2018 federal budget passing with 

strong support for LBNF/DUNE is great news and goes a long way with our international partners who 

have been concerned for some time about the U.S. delay in passing a budget. 

Ms. Lebrun reiterated Dr. Wilson’s comments and said this is a great project. Ms. Lebrun welcomed Dr. 

Rankin to the board and hopes he finds Sanford Lab interesting, informative and of high value not only 

to the country and state but to the SDSM&T. She also complimented the staff and thanked them for 

upgrading the technology for individuals that call in to meetings (a great improvement from a few years 

ago). Ms. Lebrun said she attended the Cultural Advisory Committee meeting last month and it is going 

well. She encouraged board members to watch the Cultural Awareness video as it is stunningly beautiful 

as well as informative. She thanked everyone and wished them a Happy Easter. 

Mr. Christen said he is excited about the lab and happy about the federal budget passing. He said Mr. 

Headley and the SDSTA staff are doing a terrific job. He said Dr. Heise’s presentation on current 

experiments at the lab is a good reminder of what is going on and he is pleased with all the activity. Mr. 

Christen said he is looking forward to seeing everyone in June. 

Mr. Wheeler reiterated his earlier comments expressing his appreciation for Mr. Headley’s great work as 

well as the entire staff. He also expressed his appreciation for all the work Mr. Engel is doing for the 

SDSTA. 

Mr. Dykhouse said he also appreciated the science update by Dr. Heise. He said the audit of the SDSTA 

controls is appropriate and needs to be done. The SDSTA will continue to grow and it will give 

confidence to all parties involved. Lastly, he said there will be turnover this year with the Governor and 

several legislators that have been long-time supporters of Sanford Lab. We would be remiss if we didn’t 

take every opportunity to educate those potential incoming legislators and gubernatorial candidates of 

what is going on at Sanford Lab and hopefully gain their support. 

Mr. Headley thanked Ms. Knight for organizing and supporting the meeting as well recognized the great 

work of the SDSTA team. He recognized the board, Mr. Engel and Lewis-Burke Associates for all their 

support. He said the SDSTA has an amazing team and although there are challenges to get 

LBNF/DUNE off the ground, the SDSTA will and is doing absolutely all that they can to assist. 

Mr. Tim Engel thanked the board for the kind words and the opportunity. He reiterated the appreciation 

from Mr. Headley and the SDSTA team and said the team is very responsive when he requests items and 

he tries to reciprocate. 

Chairperson Peterson then asked Mr. Headley to write a letter of appreciation (perhaps preliminary) to 

thank Governor Daugaard and those outgoing legislators for their huge support. Mr. Headley said he 

would be happy to write a letter. Chairperson Peterson said “team SURF” is awesome and recognized 

them including Mr. Engel for their great work. He said he would like to write a letter to thank Mr. 

Ledford and his team for a huge gap that they helped bridge. In conclusion, he thanked Mr. Headley and 

Mr. Wheeler for their work.  

Page 19 of 144



March 29, 2018 Board of Directors Meeting   Page 8 of 8

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority • 630 East Summit Street, Lead, SD 57754 • (605) 722-8650 

Final draft to be approved at June 28, 2018 board meeting. 

ITEM 15. ADJOURN 

Chairperson Peterson asked if anyone had any other questions or comments, then called for a motion to 

adjourn. 

Motion by Mr. Dykhouse and second by Mr. Wheeler to adjourn. Motion passed unanimously by roll 

call vote. 

Meeting adjourned at 10:50AM.  

Page 20 of 144



May 1, 2018 Board of Directors Telephonic Special Meeting  Page 1 of 3

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority • 630 East Summit Street, Lead, SD 57754 • (605) 722-8650 

Final draft to be approved at June 28, 2018 board meeting 

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority Board of Directors 

Special Telephonic Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, May 1, 2018 

Lead, South Dakota 

The Board of Directors of the South Dakota Science and Technology Authority (SDSTA) convened at 

9:02 a.m. Mountain Time (MT) on Tuesday, May 1, 2018, via teleconference. Listening posts for the 

public were established at the office of the SDSTA at 630 E. Summit Street, Lead, South Dakota, and at 

the Dolly-Reed Plaza in the Treehouse conference room, 711 East Wells Avenue, Pierre, South Dakota. 

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD IN ATTENDANCE BY TELEPHONE 

Mr. Paul Christen 

Vice-Chairperson Dana Dykhouse 

Secretary/Treasurer Patricia Lebrun 

Chairperson Casey Peterson 

Vice-Chairperson Ron Wheeler 

Dr. Robert Wilson  

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD ABSENT 

Dr. Ani Aprahamian 

Dr. Jim Rankin 

SDSTA STAFF IN ATTENDANCE 

Mr. Tim Engel, Legal Counsel (by phone) 

Mr. Mike Headley, Executive Director 

Ms. Mandy Knight, Administrative Services Manager 

Ms. Constance Walter, Communications Director 

ITEM 1. CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Peterson called the meeting to order at 9:02 a.m. (MT). Chair Peterson declared a quorum was 

present, consisting of board members Mr. Christen, Vice-Chair Dykhouse, Ms. Lebrun, Chairperson 

Peterson and Mr. Ron Wheeler. Those absent were Dr. Aprahamian and Dr. Jim Rankin. 

Chair Casey Peterson asked participants at the listening posts in Pierre and Lead to identify themselves. 

There was no response at the Pierre listening post. SDSTA staff listed above were present at the Lead 

office, except SDSTA Legal Counsel Mr. Tim Engel who joined by phone. 

ITEM 2. APPROVE AGENDA 

Chair Peterson asked for a motion to approve the agenda. 

Dr. Wilson joined the meeting at 9:03 a.m. 

Motion by Ms. Lebrun and second by Mr. Christen to approve the agenda as presented. By roll call vote, 

the motion passed unanimously. 

ITEM 3. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Motion by Mr. Dykhouse and second by Mr. Wheeler to enter into executive session to discuss personnel 

matters and to consult with legal counsel concerning contractual matters. Motion passed unanimously 

by roll call vote. 

The board entered into Executive Session at 9:05 a.m. and reconvened in open session at 9:28 a.m. 

Page 21 of 144



May 1, 2018 Board of Directors Telephonic Special Meeting  Page 2 of 3

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority • 630 East Summit Street, Lead, SD 57754 • (605) 722-8650 

Final draft to be approved at June 28, 2018 board meeting 

ITEM 4. REPORT FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Roll call was taken, and Chair Peterson declared a quorum was present. 

Chair Peterson reported that the board consulted with legal counsel concerning contractual and legal 

matters. No action was taken. 

Motion by Ms. Lebrun and second by Mr. Christen to approve the executive session report. By roll call 

vote, the motion passed unanimously. 

ITEM 5. APPROVAL TO BIND INSURANCE, APPROVAL OF PREMIUM FINANCING 

PLAN AND APPROVAL OF FUTURE FUND GRANT AGREEMENT 

SDSTA Legal Counsel Mr. Tim Engel said as the members of the board will recall, a condition of the 

Property Donation Agreement (PDA) is SDSTA must maintain commercial general liability (CGL) 

coverage insuring all of the SDSTA activities at the facility with a limit of not less than $75 million. 

With the imminent addition of the Long Baseline Neutrino Experiment/Deep Underground Neutrino 

Experiment (LBNF/DUNE), SDSTA Executive Director Mr. Mike Headley and Mr. Engel have been 

working to find ways to insure the risks associated with that project to maintain compliance with the 

PDA. The captive’s actuarial report indicates it would cost approximately $1 million/year for 5 years to 

take on the new risks; accordingly, coverage through the captive is not cost effective. 

Mr. Headley and Mr. Engel also worked with the South Dakota Office of Risk Management to seek 

commercial coverage for LBNF/DUNE only, which was determined it is more cost effective. The 

proposed single pay premium for a 5-year owner’s interest CGL policy for LBNF/DUNE is 

approximately $1.3 million, which is cheaper than the captive. 

Mr. Headley and Mr. Engel also looked at insuring everything commercially. It is not cost effective and 

would cost approximately $560,000/year over 5 years. Alternately, the proposal to have the captive 

insure non-LBNF/DUNE exposures plus this CGL policy financed over 5 years is approximately 

$433,000/year.  

In regard to the CGL coverage, Mr. Engel said he and Mr. Headley are proposing the captive will issue 

an exclusion, and it will no longer cover LBNF/DUNE-related exposures as of August 1, 2018. Also, on 

August 1, 2018, a separate commercial CGL policy will insure the LBNF/DUNE-related exposures. 

Hence, there will be two “towers”. One “tower” (commercial insurance) will cover LBNF/DUNE-

related risks and the other tower (the captive) will cover all other SDSTA-related risks. Each tower will 

cap out at $75 million. 

Mr. Engel said the other coverages needed are the Directors and Officers (D&O), Errors and Omissions 

(E&O) and Employment Practices Liability (EPL). He said the captive’s actuarial report indicates the 

risk for EPL claims will increase due to the large number of new individuals on site during 

LBNF/DUNE construction. Mr. Headley and Mr. Engel again looked at the captive to insure everything 

for those types of risks, and it is not cost effective—it is less expensive to insure those risks 

commercially. The premium is approximately $32,000/year. Hence, purchasing this new commercial 

insurance will cover LBNF/DUNE-related risks only and the captive tower will cover all other SDSTA-

related risks related to D&O, E&O and EPL.  

Mr. Engel said rather than pay the $1.3 million premium in one lump sum, there is a proposal to finance 

it over 5 years. The first payment is due by August 1, 2018 in the amount of $350,000. The remaining 

annual payments are due April 1 of each year in the amount of $258,787.01/year. If the policy is 

Page 22 of 144



May 1, 2018 Board of Directors Telephonic Special Meeting  Page 3 of 3

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority • 630 East Summit Street, Lead, SD 57754 • (605) 722-8650 

Final draft to be approved at June 28, 2018 board meeting 

canceled, then payments will not be owed unless there is a claim prior to cancelation. If that is the case, 

the premium payment will then need to be addressed. 

Mr. Engel said the last issue is Governor Daugaard has agreed to provide a Future Fund Grant to make 

the first-year premium payment on the CGL policy as well as pay for one year of D&O, E&O and EPL 

coverages. The Future Fund grant agreement is contingent upon the grant funds being the money of last 

resort. The Governor understands the SDSTA will continue to work with Fermi Research Alliance LLC 

(FRA) and Department of Energy (DOE) to cover the costs. If this happens, there would be no Future 

Fund Grant needed and the Future Fund agreement would be canceled. 

In conclusion, Mr. Engel suggested a motion to authorize the chairperson or executive director to bind 

commercial general liability coverage and Directors and Officers, Errors and Omissions, and 

Employment Practices Liability coverage by the end of the day today with commercial carriers as 

presented. Mr. Engel also suggested the motion include authorization for the chairperson or executive 

director to execute the financing agreement, and to execute the Future Fund grant agreement. 

Motion by Mr. Wheeler and second by Ms. Lebrun to authorize the chairperson or executive director to 

bind commercial general liability coverage and Directors and Officers, Errors and Omissions, and 

Employment Practices Liability coverage with commercial carriers as presented, to execute the 

financing agreement and to execute the Future Fund grant agreement. 

Chair Peterson asked if there were further questions or comments. 

Dr. Wilson asked if the 5-year period for insurance is the total construction time for LBNF/DUNE and 

what happens if construction is delayed or takes longer? Chair Peterson said it is for the construction 

time and if construction takes longer, the insurance would need to be extended and most likely go out 

for quotes again. 

Mr. Headley concurred with Chair Peterson and noted that the insurance was targeted to cover the civil 

construction period for LBNF. He said there has been discussions with Fermilab about an insurance 

approach for the DUNE installation and operations period. That insurance would likely need to be 

structured differently than what has been outlined here. 

Mr. Engel said it is possible to extend these coverages, but it would be additional premium and would be 

contingent on the loss history.  

Chair Peterson thanked the Governor, Mr. Engel and Mr. Headley for working on this. He said it is 

imperative to do this and the SDSTA needs to act now as the insurance premium will increase if it is not 

bound today. He said he endorsed this motion. 

By roll call vote, the motion passed unanimously. 

ITEM 6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Chair Peterson asked if there were any questions or comments from the public. There were none. 

ITEM 7. ADJOURN 

Chair Peterson reminded board members the next regularly scheduled board meeting will be held on 

Thursday, June 28 at 8:00 a.m. (MT) in the Education and Outreach Building and called for a motion to 

adjourn. 

Motion by Dr. Wilson and second by Mr. Dykhouse to adjourn. By roll call vote, the motion passed 

unanimously. 

Meeting adjourned at 9:40 a.m. (MT) on May 1, 2018. 

Page 23 of 144



Page 24 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority Agenda Item: 04 

June 28, 2018 Board Meeting  

Conflict of Interest Disclosure—Mr. Tim Engel 

Recommended Action: 

Informational. 

Page 25 of 144



Page 26 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority Agenda Item: 05 

June 28, 2018 Board Meeting  

Waiver Under SDCL CH. 3-23—Mr. Tim Engel 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to grant waiver or decline to grant waiver. 

Page 27 of 144



Page 28 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority Agenda Item: 06 

June 28, 2018 Board Meeting  

Adopt Board of Internal Controls model Policy—Mr. Tim Engel 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to adopt the SDSTA Board of Internal Controls model policy as presented. 

Attached is the Board of Internal Controls model policy for approval. 

See suggested motion below. 

Page 29 of 144



Page 30 of 144



1 

SDSTA Code of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policy 
Adopted June 28, 2018 

The purpose of this code of conduct and conflict of interest policy ("Code") is to establish a set 

of minimum ethical principles and guidelines for members of state authorities, boards, 

commissions, or committees when acting within their official public service capacity. This Code 

applies to all appointed and elected members of state authorities, boards, commissions and 

committees (hereinafter "Boards" and "Board member(s)"). 

A. Conflict of Interest for Board Members

Board members may be subject to statutory restrictions specific to their Boards found in

state and federal laws, rules and regulations. Those restrictions are beyond the scope of

this Code. Board members should contact their appointing authority or the attorney for the

Board for information regarding restrictions specific to their Board.

B. General Restrictions on Participation in Board Actions

A conflict of interest exists when a Board member has an interest in a matter that is

different from the interest of members of the general public. Examples of circumstances

which may create a conflict of interest include a personal or pecuniary interest in the matter

or an existing or potential employment relationship with a party involved in the proceeding.

Whether or not a conflict of interest requires a Board member to abstain from participation

in an official action of the Board depends upon the type of action involved. A Board's official

actions are administrative, quasi-judicial or quasi-legislative.

A quasi-judicial official action is particular and immediate in effect, such as a review of an

application for a license or permit. In order to participate in a quasi-judicial official action of

the Board, a Board member must be disinterested and free from actual bias or an

unacceptable risk of actual bias. A Board member must abstain from participation in the

discussion and vote on a quasijudicial official action of the Board if a reasonably-minded

person could conclude that there is an unacceptable risk that the Board member has

prejudged the matter or that the Board member's interest or relationship creates a potential

to influence the member's impartiality.

A quasi-legislative official action, also referred to as a regulatory action, is general and

future in effect. An example is rule-making. If the official action involved is quasi-legislative

in nature, the Board member is not required to abstain from participation in the discussion

and vote on the action unless it is clear that the member has an unalterably closed mind on

matters critical to the disposition of the action.

Administrative actions involve the day-to-day activities of the Board and include personnel,

financing, contracting and other management actions. Most of the administrative official

actions of a Board are done through the Board's administrative staff. To the extent Board

Page 31 of 144



2 

members are involved, the conflict of interest concern most frequently arises in the area of 

state contracting which is addressed in more detail below. If issues arise that are not 

directly addressed by this Code, the Board member should consult with the attorney for the 

Board. 

"Official action" means a decision, recommendation, approval, disapproval or other action 

which involves discretionary authority. A Board member who violates any of these 

restrictions may be subject to removal from the Board to which the member is appointed. 

C. Contract Restrictions

There are federal and state laws, rules and regulations that address conflict of interest for

elected and appointed Board members in the area of contracts. As an initial matter, a

Board member may not solicit or accept any gift, favor, reward, or promise of reward,

including any promise of future employment, in exchange for recommending, influencing or

attempting to influence the award of or the terms of a state contract. This prohibition is

absolute and cannot be waived.

Members of certain Boards are required to comply with additional conflict of interest

provisions found in SDCL Chapter 3-23.and are required to make an annual disclosure of

any contract in which they have or may have an interest or from which they derive a direct

benefit. The restrictions apply for one year following the end of the Board member's term.

The Boards impacted by these laws are enumerated within SDCL 3-23-10. For more

information on these provisions, see the State Authorities/Boards/Commissions page in the

Legal Resources section of the Attorney General's website at:

http://atg.sd.gov/legal/opengovernment/authorityboardcommission.aspx.

Absent a waiver, certain Board members are further prohibited from deriving a direct

benefit from a contract with an outside entity if the Board member had substantial

involvement in recommending, awarding, or administering the contract or if the Board

member supervised another state officer or employee who approved, awarded or

administered the contract. With the exception of employment contracts, the foregoing

prohibition applies for one year following the end of the Board member's term. However,

the foregoing prohibition does not apply to Board members who serve without

compensation or who are only paid a per diem. See SDCL 5-18A-17 to 5-18A-17.6. For

more information on these restrictions see the Conflict of Interest Waiver Instructions and

Form on the South Dakota Bureau of Human Resources website at:

http://bhr.sd.gov/forms/.

Other federal and state laws, rules and regulations may apply to specific Boards. For

general questions regarding the applicability of SDCL Chapter 3-23 or other laws, a Board

member may contact the attorney for the Board. However, because the attorney for the

Board does not represent the Board member in his or her individual capacity, a Board

member should contact a private attorney if the member has questions as to how the

conflict of interest laws apply to the Board member's own interests and contracts.

Page 32 of 144



3 

D. Consequences of Violations of Conflict of Interest Laws

A contract entered into in violation of conflict of interest laws is voidable and any benefit

received by the Board member is subject to disgorgement. In addition, a Board member

who violates conflict of interest laws may be removed from the Board and may be subject

to criminal prosecution. For example, a Board member may be prosecuted for theft if the

member knowingly uses funds or property entrusted to the member in violation of public

trust and the use resulted in a direct financial benefit to the member. See SDCL 3-16-7, 5-

18A-17.4, and 22-30-46.

E. Retaliation for Reporting

A Board cannot dismiss, suspend, demote, decrease the compensation of, or take any

other retaliatory action against an employee because the employee reports, in good faith, a

violation or suspected violation of a law or rule, an abuse of funds or abuse of authority, a

substantial and specific danger to public health or safety, or a direct criminal conflict of

interest, unless the report is specifically prohibited by law. SDCL 3-16-9 & 3-16-10.

Board members will not engage in retaliatory treatment of an individual because the

individual reports harassment, opposes discrimination, participates in the complaint

process, or provides information related to a complaint. See SDCL 20-13-26.

F. Anti-Harassment/Discrimination Policy

While acting within their official capacity, Board members will not engage in harassment or
discriminatory or offensive behavior based on race, color, creed, religion, national origin,
sex, pregnancy, age, ancestry, genetic information, disability or any other legally protected
status or characteristic.

Harassment includes conduct that creates a hostile work environment for an employee or
another Board member. This prohibition against harassment and discrimination also
encompasses sexual harassment. Sexual harassment includes unwelcome sexual
advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexually
harassing nature, when: (1) submission to or rejection of the harassment is made either
explicitly or implicitly the basis of or a condition of employment, appointment, or a favorable
or unfavorable action by the Board member; or (2) the harassment has the purpose or
effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance or creating an
intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment.

Harassment or discriminatory or offensive behavior may take different forms and may be
verbal, nonverbal, or physical in nature. To aid Board members in identifying inappropriate
conduct, the following examples of harassment or discriminatory or offensive behavior are
provided:

• Unwelcome physical contact such as kissing, fondling, hugging or touching;

• Demands for sexual favors; sexual innuendoes, suggestive comments, jokes of a

Page 33 of 144



4 

sexual nature, sexist put-downs, or sexual remarks about a person's body; sexual 
propositions, or persistent unwanted courting; 

• Swearing, offensive gestures or graphic language made because of a person's race,
color, religion, national origin, sex, age or disability;

• Slurs, jokes, or derogatory remarks, email or other communications relating to race,
color, religion, national origin, sex, age or disability; or

• Calendars, posters, pictures, drawings, displays, cartoons, images, lists, e-mails or
computer activity that reflects disparagingly upon race, color, religion, national origin,
sex, age or disability.

The above cited examples are not intended to be all-inclusive. 

A Board member who is in violation of this policy may be subject to removal from the 
Board. 

G. Confidential Information

Except as otherwise required by law, Board members shall not disclose confidential

information acquired during the course of their official duties. In addition, members are

prohibited from the use of confidential information for personal gain.

H. Reporting of Violations

Any violation of this Code should be reported to the appointing authority for the Board

member who is alleged to have violated the Code.

I. Existing Policy

Nothing herein shall act to repeal the SDSTA Financial Conflict of Interest Policy originally
adopted February 7, 2007.

This Code of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policy was adopted by the State Board of Internal Control pursuant 

to SDCL § 1-56-6. 

Page 34 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority Agenda Item: 07 

June 28, 2018 Board Meeting  

Appoint Members to Audit Committee—Chairperson Casey Peterson 

Recommended Action: 

Informational. 

Attached is the Audit Committee Charter dated June 19, 2014. 

7A. Annual appointment of committee members per Audit Charter. 

7B. Annual review of Audit Charter. 

Page 35 of 144



Page 36 of 144



SOUTH DAKOTA SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY AUTHORITY 
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER 

SDSTA Audit Committee Charter; updated June 19, 2014 
Page 1 of 3 

STATEMENT OF MISSION 
The mission of the South Dakota Science and Technology Authority (SDSTA) Audit Committee is to be 
the pro-active steward for oversight of the financial reporting and disclosure process for SDSTA, 
including the investigation of claimed breaches of ethics, theft, fraud, embezzlement and reports of 
whistle-blowers. Our responsibility is to the SDSTA Board of Directors to report independently on the 
results of the oversight so as to assist in maintaining and enhancing the quality of the financial reporting. 
The Audit Committee is committed to communication between and among directors, the external auditor 
and Chief Financial Officer (CFO). 

A. The Audit Committee has the following responsibilities and duties:
1. Appointment

• Annually be appointed by the SDSTA Board of Directors at their annual meeting in June.
• At least one member will be deemed a “financial expert,” as defined by applicable law and

regulation.
2. Review

• Annually review and update this Charter.
• Annually determine the independence of Audit Committee members through a certification

by the SDSTA Board of Director’s Chairperson.
• Review the SDSTA’s annual financial statements and any reports or other financial

information submitted to or from any governmental body, or the public, including any
certification, report, opinion or review rendered by the external auditor or the SDSTA
CFO.

• Review any report or memo or other communication from Federal and State regulators and
reviewers, and attend as many entrance and exit conferences as possible.

3. External Auditors/CFO/Independent Counsel/Other Advisors

• The Audit Committee shall have the independent authority to engage any legal counsel or
other advisors it deems necessary to carry out its duties.

• Periodically consult with the external auditor out of the presence of management about
internal controls and the fullness and accuracy of the company’s financial statements.

• Make the selection, retention, and review the performance of, the external auditor,
considering independence and effectiveness and approve the fees paid to the external
auditor as well as the proposed fee. On an annual basis, the Audit Committee should review
and discuss with the external auditor all significant relationships the external auditor has
with the company to determine the auditor’s independence and consider the
appropriateness of the non-audit services prior to their engagement.

• Periodically meet with the CFO on the results of exams, and be available to CFO for
appropriate communications at any time they desire the meeting.

4. Financial Reporting Process
• In consultation with the external auditor, review the integrity of the SDSTA’s financial

reporting processes.

Page 37 of 144



SOUTH DAKOTA SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY AUTHORITY 
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER 

SDSTA Audit Committee Charter; updated June 19, 2014 
Page 2 of 3 

• Consider the external auditor’s judgments about the quality and appropriateness of the
SDSTA’s accounting principles, as applied in its financial reports and as promulgated by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

• Consider and forward to the SDSTA Board of Directors, if appropriate, recommendations
for major changes to the SDSTA’s auditing and accounting principles and practices as
suggested by the external auditor, management or the CFO.

• Establish regular and separate systems of reporting to the Audit Committee by management
and the external auditor regarding any significant judgments made in management’s
preparation of the financial statements and the Audit Committee’s view of each as to
appropriateness of such judgments.

• Following completion of the annual audit, review separately with management and the
external auditor any significant difficulties encountered during the course of the audit,
including any restrictions on the scope of work, or access to required information.

• Review and resolve any significant disagreement among management and the external
auditor in connection with the preparation of the financial statements. Review in detail the
passed audit adjustments and the materiality levels used by the external auditor, and the
impact of Management’s estimates used in the financial statement preparation.

• Review with the external auditor and management the extent to which changes or
improvements in financial or accounting practices, as approved by the Audit Committee in
prior reports or meetings, have been implemented.

5. Ethical and Legal Compliance
• Establish, review and update periodically a Conflict of Interest Policy and ensure that

management has established a system to enforce this Policy.
• Review management’s monitoring of compliance with the SDSTA’s Conflict of Interest

Policy, and verify that management has the proper review system in place to ensure that
financial statements, reports, and other financial information disseminated to governmental
organizations, and the public, satisfy legal requirements.

• Review with SDSTA’s retained legal counsel any legal matter that could have a significant
impact on the SDSTA’s financial statements.

• Periodically review individual committee member education and obtain resources,
seminars and materials to keep the level of member’s education current.

• Perform any other activities consistent with this Charter, the SDSTA’s By-Laws and
governing law, as the Audit Committee or the SDSTA Board of Directors deems necessary
or appropriate.

6. Reporting
In order to facilitate the proper execution of its duties and responsibilities, the Audit
Committee shall conduct its reviews and investigations in a confidential manner.  The Audit
Committee shall report to the SDSTA Board the results of the Financial Reporting Process,
consultations with External Auditors, the CFO or other Advisors, or any other issues they
deem important for the SDSTA Board to meet its responsibilities. These reports shall include,
but not be limited to, the results of the annual external audit or any internal audit on financial
reports or compliance (including difficulties or disagreements encountered, if any, past

Page 38 of 144



SOUTH DAKOTA SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY AUTHORITY 
AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER 

SDSTA Audit Committee Charter; updated June 19, 2014 
Page 3 of 3 

adjustments, materiality defined by the auditor, any legal matter having a material impact on 
the report, management letter comments, etc.), the integrity of the financial reporting system, 
the appropriateness of the accounting principles applied to the financial reports, the status of 
internal controls, any suggested change to any of the above systems the Audit Committee 
thinks should be made, any significant report or communication from any other matter that the 
Audit Committee deems critical information needed by the SDSTA Board.  To the extent 
permitted by applicable law, the Audit Committee’s reports to the Board of Directors shall be 
delivered in closed session. 

The Audit Committee shall strive to provide the Board with the information it needs to 
manage the reporting and accounting for the SDSTA as well as utilize the reports to manage 
all of the other risks it faces. These reports will be made when information is received and 
available. The Annual Schedule below outlines some of the reporting dates anticipated. 

7. Budget Process
The Audit Committee will meet with the CFO in March to establish the annual budget for the
Audit Committee to cover costs for audit fees, legal fees, consulting fees, continuing
education travel and costs and miscellaneous costs.

B. Annual Schedule
The Audit Committee will meet at its discretion but the following is a guideline for business to be
conducted during the year:
December-January – Meet with external auditors to discuss preliminary audit findings, letters to
management, passed adjustments, materiality, management estimates, and quality and
appropriateness of accounting principles.

March-June – Present audit findings, letter of comments and other appropriate information to the
SDSTA’s Board of Directors at SDSTA annual meeting. Meet to update issues on hiring other
outside auditors for review, as deemed necessary, of such areas as EDP, compliance, etc.
September – Request proposal for external audit. Meet with CFO.

October/November/December – Meet with CFO to review any issues regarding the audit. Meet to
engage external financial auditor on entrance conference. Review all SDSTA regulators’ reports
(State and/or Federal). Certify as to committee member’s independence.

C. Limitations on the Committee’s Role:

While the Audit Committee has the responsibilities and powers as stated above, it is not the
Committee’s duty to audit the SDSTA’s financial statements or to determine that the SDSTA’s
financial statements are complete and accurate in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP), as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. These are
the responsibilities of management and the independent auditors.

Page 39 of 144



Page 40 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority Agenda Item: 08 

June 28, 2018 Board Meeting  

Financial Report—Mr. Mike Headley 

Recommended Action:  

8A. Motion to accept the Financial Report as presented. 

8B. Motion to approve SDSTA fiscal year 2019 budget. 

Financial Report: 

8A.  Financial Summaries for May 2018, attached. 

8B.  FY2019 Budgets, attached. 

1. FY2019 Budget Summary

2. FY 2019 CAPEX Budget

3. FY2019 SDSTA Budget

Page 41 of 144



Page 42 of 144



8A-Financial Summaries, May 2018

Page 43 of 144



Page 44 of 144



Page 45 of 144



Page 46 of 144



Page 47 of 144



Page 48 of 144



Page 49 of 144



Page 50 of 144



Page 51 of 144



Page 52 of 144



Page 53 of 144



Page 54 of 144



Federal Funding SDSTA Funds Budget $ Budget $ Difference

Administration Budgets FY18/19 FY17/18

Board of Directors $236,800 $236,800 $236,800 $0

Executive Office $126,496 $126,496 $181,812 ($55,316)

Science Liaison $0 $0 $0 $0

*** Science Center E & O $78,040 $78,040 $76,840 $1,200

Sanford Visitor Center $0 $0 $42,470 ($42,470)

Total $441,336 $441,336 $537,922 ($96,586)

*** Science C.E & O (Approx. $6,120 from Chris B. Memorial)

Total Authority Operating Budgets $0 $441,336 441,336$  $537,922 ($96,586)

Federal Funding & State GOED Funding $29,494,420 $29,494,420 $24,961,857 $4,532,563

Xilinx

CAPEX Budget 7/2018 - 6/2019 $142,900 2,562,900$        $5,747,905 (3,185,005)$  

Additional Approval Beyond Carryover Includes carry Total for year

over

Total for Approval $29,494,420 $584,236 32,498,656$      $31,247,684 $1,250,972

Approximate Carryover CAPEX Projects $2,420,000

SDSTA Funds 6 summer interns

Grand Total with Carryover $29,494,420 $3,004,236 $32,498,656 Other & Indirect 160.15

SDSTA Funds includes funding from GOED/Foundation for Xenon Total FTE 160.15

SDSTA Operating Budget Summary FY2019

July 2018 - June 2019

Sources of Revenue

Total FTE 

Page 55 of 144



Page 56 of 144



6/15/2018

Proj. Mng Project # Project Description New Proj. $'s

Estimated Carry Over 

Proj.$'s Total Proj. $'s

* M. Headley CAP2014-01 Sanford V.Center Ground Monitoring 5,400$        5,400$               

*** M. Headley CAP2016-03 LZ - Xenon Gas/Foundation Interest 137,500$             2,420,000$             2,557,500$              

TOTAL ALL PROJECTS 142,900$             2,420,000$              2,562,900$              

Total FY19 Budget 142,900$             2,420,000$              2,562,900$              

* Sanford Gift Funding

*** GOED and Foundation Funding

Column labeled "New Proj. $'s consists of funding for ongoing ground monitoring at the Sanford

Lab Homestake Visitor Center and yearly interest to be paid to the (3) Foundations for Xenon

loans.

SDSTA FY2019 CAPEX Budget

Page 57 of 144



Page 58 of 144



Funding Source P.O/Subc. FY19 Amount

LBNL LUX/Zeplin Operat.Supp 7355157 92,385$  

LBNL LUX/Zeplin Eng. Suppo 7255146 1,110,224 

SIGMA-V 7371823 96,354 

Fermi (SURF OPS Services) 629760 19,994,541 

Fermi Ross Rehab 630223 6,303,473 

Fermi Engineer Supp 631450 475,738 

ERT Security Emerg.Supp Fermi Subcontract 1,299,362 

SDSM&Tech. - CASPAR PHY-1615197 50,855 

BHState Univ. UG Campus FOP 636610 8,718 

Oak Ridge N.L. MJD 144149 45,334 

Xilinx 735935 17,436 

Totals 29,494,420$  

SDSTA

FY2019 Budget

Page 59 of 144



Page 60 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority Agenda Item: 09 

June 28, 2018 Board Meeting  

Executive Director’s Report—Mr. Mike Headley 

Recommended Action:  

Motion to accept the Executive Director’s Report as presented. 

The Executive Director’s Report includes the following: 

9A. SDSTA Quarterly Update—informational. 

9B. Declaration of Surplus—miscellaneous items, informational. 

9C. South Dakota National Guard Update—presentation by Ms. Michele Baumann. 

9D. E&O—Update and Davis Bahcall Scholar introductions (Dr. June Apaza and Dr. Cyndi 

Anderson). 

Davis Bahcall Scholars: 

1. Courtney Miller

2. Gabriel Spahn

3. Grace Jones

4. Hannah Neumiller

5. Lauren Schild

6. Roberto Penaloza Valencia

7. Samantha King

8. Zachary Hoopman

Page 61 of 144



Page 62 of 144



AN ACT 

ENTITLED, An Act to establish certain provisions related to grant monitoring and review and to 

revise certain record retention policies. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA: 

Section 1. That § 4-11-7 .2 be amended to read: 

4-11-7 .2. Not less than ten days after the date of filing the audit reports, the Department of

Legislative Audit or the private auditing firm, whichever perfonned the audit, shall publish for two 

issues in each of the official papers of the school district a brief statement of the fact that the audit 

was made, where the audit may be found on file for public inspection, and a brief recital of the 

substantial items of error, irregularity, or loss which were discovered, but with enough detail so that 

the public is infonned of the important findings of the audit. The Department of Legislative Audit 

or the private auditing firm, whichever made the audit, shall furnish a copy of the report of the audit 

to the person designated by the school board to receive the report. The designated person shall 

furnish a copy of the report of the audit to each member of the school board. The expense of the 

publication shall be paid at the legal rate by the school district. 

Section 2. That§ 4-11-12 be amended to read: 

4-11-12. Not less than ten days after the date of filing the reports on audit in any public office

the auditor-general shall cause to be published for two issues in each of the official papers of any 

municipality, school district or county, the audit of which has been completed, a brief statement of 

the fact that he has made the audit and where the same may be found on file for public inspection 

and also a brief recital of the substantial items of error, irregularity, or loss which he has discovered 

but with sufficient detail so that the public may be informed of the important findings of the audit. 

Expense of such publication is to be paid at legal rate by the said municipality, school district, or 

county. Any county, city, or school district who receives an independent audit shall make the audit 

SB No. 100 Page 1 

Page 63 of 144



Page 64 of 144



Page 65 of 144



Page 66 of 144



Page 67 of 144



 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority 630 E. Summit St., Lead, SD 57754 • 605.722.8650 

DECLARATION OF SURPLUS PROPERTY 

The South Dakota Science and Technology Authority (SDSTA) wishes to surplus items listed that 
are located on property. SDSTA has no further use for the items below:  

• Wooden Office Desk

• 3 x 2 Wooden Table

• EMD – 6MV12 Diesel Motor Generator and Generator Skid (Model # 12-645-E4)
Serial# 76-D1-1006.

• Galvanized Matting or Lacing (6 x 2 ½).

• Dry Ice Machine (Model F-16A) Jet Blast System

I hereby declare the items listed to be Surplus Property. The SDSTA is currently seeking 

bids. Dated at Lead, South Dakota this 26th day of April 2018. 

Mike Headley 
SDSTA Executive Director 

Page 68 of 144



 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 69 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority             Agenda Item: 10   

June 28, 2018 Annual Board Meeting  

 

Approval of Lease for City of Lead Maintenance Shop—Mr. Mike Headley 

 
 

 
Recommended Action:   

Motion to approve the Lease as presented, to authorize the Chairperson, in consultation with the 

Executive Director and Legal Counsel, to negotiate the final terms of the Lease and to authorize the 

Chairperson to execute the final version of the Lease. 

Attached is the Lease agreement between the South Dakota Science and Technology Authority 

(SDSTA) and the City of Lead, as well as Exhibits A and B. 

 

See recommended motion below.

Page 70 of 144



Page 71 of 144



PREPARED BY: 

Timothy M. Engel 

May, Adam, Gerdes & Thompson LLP 

PO Box 160 

Pierre, SD 57501-0160 

(605) 224-8803 

1 

 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

AND TERMINATION OF EXISTING LEASE 

 

 This Lease Agreement (“Agreement”) is hereby made and entered into effective the ___ 

day of ________________, 2018 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the South Dakota 

Science and Technology Authority, a body corporate and politic, of 630 E. Summit Street, Lead, 

SD, 57754 (“Landlord”) and the Tenant of Lead, a South Dakota municipal corporation, of 801 

West Main, Lead, South Dakota 57754 (“Tenant”).  For good and valuable consideration, the 

receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged by each party hereto, the parties AGREE as 

follows: 

 

 1.  Termination of Existing Lease.  The Lease Agreement entered into between 

Homestake Mining Company of California and Tenant dated September 1, 1999 is hereby 

terminated, effective as of the Effective Date.  Landlord hereby consents and agrees to the 

termination of the September 1, 1999 Lease Agreement in its capacity as assignor and successor 

in interest to Landlord Mining Company of California’s interest in said lease. 

 

 2.  Lease.  (a).  Landlord hereby leases to Tenant certain real property located within the 

Tenant of Lead, Lawrence County, South Dakota as generally shown on the drawing attached 

hereto as Exhibit A, which is a portion of the real estate described as Tract F, Yates Subdivision, 

City of Lead, Lawrence County, South Dakota, as shown on Plat Document Number 2005-8217 

 (“Property”) for use as the location of its city maintenance shop and to conduct activities on the 

Property in connection with such use, including but not limited to the storage and maintenance of 

equipment. The foregoing notwithstanding, the Property does not include, and Lessee may not 

enter in or upon or otherwise access the locations described on the attached Exhibit A as the 

“(Former) Coal Chute,” “Old Substation,” or “Old High (empty)”.   

 

 (b)  Tenant’s right to use the Property for the purposes stated above are exclusive, but 

Landlord retains the right to enter the Property and permit others to enter the Property to exercise 

all of the rights and incidents of ownership not expressly granted to Tenant by this Lease. 

 

 (c)  Landlord further reserves for itself a right of ingress and egress upon that portion of 

the Property so designated on Exhibit A for the purpose of access as provided above in 

subsection 2(b) and for the further purpose of ingress and egress to and through adjacent real 

property owned by Landlord. 

Page 72 of 144



(d) Landlord makes no warranty or representation as to Landlord’s title to the Property,

or the condition of or zoning ordinances concerning the Property for any purpose including but 

not limited to the purposes for which Tenant enters into this Lease. 

(e).  Tenant acknowledges the following: 

(i).  the buildings shown on the attached Exhibit A which are owned by Landlord 

may contain asbestos, mold, lead paint, or other substances or materials which may be hazardous 

to human health; 

(ii).  the area designated on the attached Exhibit A as “Old Substation” may 

contain PCBs or other substances or materials which may be hazardous to human health; 

(iii).  Landlord has performed little to no maintenance on the Landlord-owned 

buildings shown on Exhibit A.  Such buildings may not be structurally sound and may contain 

trip and fall hazards, low clearances, and other hazards to human health.  Such buildings may not 

be secure against the elements, including wind or rain.     

(f).  Tenant has inspected the Property, including the Landlord-owned buildings and the 

Old Substation and accepts the Property and all improvements in its and their “AS IS” condition. 

3. TERM.  The initial term of this Lease shall be two years, commencing as of the

Effective Date.  Thereafter this Lease may be renewed for additional terms of one year each 

upon such terms as are agreed upon by the parties and subject to such approval of Tenant’s 

governing body as may be required by applicable law.  The foregoing notwithstanding, Tenant 

may terminate this Lease at any time upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to Landlord.  

4. UTILITIES/CONSIDERATION.  (a)  Tenant shall be responsible for all heat and

other utility services to the Property including hookup, payment and termination of service. 

(b).  Tenant agrees, in accordance with its normal and routine snow removal activities, 

that it will make one run per snow event through Landlord’s laboratory complex, including the 

property commonly known as “Ellison Hill” with the Tenant’s snow plow. 

5. STEWARDSHIP.  (a) Tenant shall maintain the Property in good and safe condition

in accordance with all applicable law and shall not discard nor allow any other party to discard 

any garbage, refuse or hazardous substance of any kind on or in the Property, and agrees to 

operate its affairs on and adjacent to the Property in compliance with all applicable local, state 

and federal laws and regulations, including those that apply to the environment, air, water, 

sanitation and fire hazards and as they may from time to time be amended by governmental 

agencies.   

(b).  As further consideration for the lease provided for herein, Tenant agrees to maintain 

its property and the adjoining real estate in accordance with Landlord’s Storm Water Pollution 

Prevention and Spill Prevention, Control and Countermeasure Plans as described on the attached 

Exhibit B, which is incorporated herein by this reference.  Tenant is hereby granted a temporary 

Page 73 of 144



 

3 

 

easement over and upon Landlord’s real estate adjoining the Property for the sole and exclusive 

purpose of maintaining Landlord’s adjoining real estate in conformity with the requirements set 

out in the attached Exhibit B.  The easement granted in this subsection 5(b) is non-exclusive, and 

may not be exercised in a manner that interferes with the use of Landlord’s property by Landlord 

or any other easement holders, licensees, or invitees.  In the event of competing needs for access 

to the easement area, before commencing work Tenant shall coordinate any such work with 

Landlord’s representative.  For the purpose of this subsection 5(b), Landlord’s representative is 

__________________________.    

 

 6.   TERMINATION BY LANDLORD/RELOCATION COMPENSATION.   

Tenant acknowledges that the provisions of the Lease dated September 1, 1999 for Relocation 

Compensation (as that term is defined in said Lease) are terminated as a part of this Agreement 

and are no longer of any force or effect.  Tenant further acknowledges and agrees that Tenant is 

not owed any Relocation Compensation or other payments or compensation of any kind 

whatsoever on account of or related to the Lease dated September 1, 1999.   

 

 7.   ABANDONMENT OR RELOCATION OF BUILDING.  The parties 

acknowledge that the steel building located on the Property (described on the attached Exhibit 

“A” as “Truck Shop” and “Office”) is owned by Tenant.  If this Agreement is terminated for any 

reason, unless otherwise agreed in writing, Tenant shall within ninety (90) days after the 

effective date of termination remove said building from the Property, remove all related 

foundations and concrete floors, and otherwise restore the Property to a level, ready for use or 

new construction condition.  The foregoing notwithstanding, Tenant is not required to remove or 

repair existing underground utilities or roadways, nor is Tenant required to install new utilities.   

 

 8.   INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Tenant shall 

indemnify, defend and hold Landlord, its directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, 

contractors and those of its affiliates harmless from any damage, loss, liability, injury or the 

claim thereof (including attorney’s fees) to persons, property, natural resources and the 

environment, including environmental liability and responsibility of every kind and character 

arising out of Tenant’s use and occupation of the Property, including without limitation the 

improvements located thereon. 

 

 9.   INSURANCE.  During the term of this Lease, Tenant shall obtain and maintain in  

effect the following insurance: 

 

(a)   Worker’s Compensation Insurance in the amounts and with the limitations of 

liability required by law. 

 

(b)    Employer’s Liability Insurance with a limit of liability of not less than 

$1,000,000.00. 

 

(c)    Commercial General Liability Insurance with a limit of liability of not less than  

$2,000,000 combined single limit, per occurrence and annual aggregate, for bodily injury and  

 

 

Page 74 of 144



 

4 

 

property damage.  Such insurance shall also include Completed Operations and Broad Form 

Blanket Contractual Liability coverage insuring Landlord against liability for all claims, loss or 

damage arising from any cause whatsoever arising out of or related to any activities of Tenant 

and/or its contractors. 

 

(d)   All such insurance coverages shall include endorsements or other provisions stating  

that all insurance of Tenant described in this Section is the primary insurance and providing for 

waiver of subrogation by the insurer against Landlord. 

 

(e)   Certificates evidencing such insurance and naming Landlord as an additional  

insured shall be delivered to Landlord within ten days of the execution of this Agreement and 

any subsequent modifications or renewals thereof.  Each such certificate shall include a provision 

that Landlord shall be given not less than 30 days prior written notice by registered mail of any 

cancellation or reduction of coverage. 

 

10.  LIENS.  Tenant shall keep the Property free of liens, including those resulting from the  

purchase of labor and materials. 

 

      11.  TAXES.  Landlord shall pay any real property taxes related to the Property.   

 

12.   INSPECTION.  Landlord reserves the right for Landlord and its representatives  

to enter the Property at any time for the purpose of exercising all rights not granted to Tenant 

pursuant to this Lease and Landlord’s rights under Section 2 to make reasonable inspections to 

ensure Tenant’s compliance with its obligations under this Lease. 

  

       13.  NOTICES.  All notices and other communications to either party shall be in writing  

and delivered personally or sent by prepaid mail, FAX or other means providing for receipt of 

the communication in written form.  Notices sent by ordinary mail shall be effective five days 

after the date of mailing.  Notices sent by certified or registered mail shall be effective on the 

next business day after the date of actual delivery.  Until a change of address is so given, notices 

shall be addressed to Landlord and Tenant ad provided in the caption to this Lease. 

 

 14. EFFECT OF LEASE; ASSIGNMENT; TRANSFER.  Tenant shall not permit 

others to use the Property.  This Lease may not be assigned or transferred by Tenant without the 

express prior written consent of Landlord, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

All rights, privileges, benefits and expectations created by or pursuant to any previous license, 

permit or lease to use the Property shall be extinguished and superseded by this Lease. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 75 of 144



5 

15. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the

parties.  There are no other conditions, agreements, representations, warranties or 

understandings, express or implied. 

SOUTH DAKOTA SCIENCE AND CITY OF LEAD 

TECHNOLOGY AUTHORITY 

By_________________________ By__________________________ 

Casey Peterson 

Chairman of the Board Mayor 

Attest: 

By__________________________ 

Mike Stahl 

Tenant Administrator 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA ) 

) SS 

COUNTY OF ______________ ) 

On this the ___ day of ____________, 2018, before me, the undersigned, personally 

appeared Casey Peterson, known to me to be the Chairman of the Board of the South Dakota 

Science and Technology Authority that is described in and that executed the within instrument, 

having authority to execute such instrument and acknowledged to me that such public entity 

executed the same. 

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 

_____________________________ 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires:_________ 

(SEAL) 

Page 76 of 144



 

6 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA ) 

 ) SS 

COUNTY OF ______________ ) 

 

On this the ___ day of ____________, 2018, before me, the undersigned, personally 

appeared ____________________, and Mike Stahl, known to me to be the Mayor and City 

Administrator, respectively, of the City of Lead that is described in and that executed the within 

instrument, having authority to execute such instrument and acknowledged to me that such public 

entity executed the same. 

In witness whereof I hereunto set my hand and official seal. 

 

_____________________________ 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires:_________ 

(SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

Page 77 of 144



Page 78 of 144



DATE:

DWG:
DRAWN BY: K.AUCHAMPACHEXHIBIT A

JUNE  2018

LEASE AREA  4.77 Acres, more or less

ExhibitA-CityLeaseArea.dwg

PORTION OF TRACT F, YATES SUBDIVISION
LEAD, SOUTH DAKOTA

Ellis
on Stre

et

Page 79 of 144



Page 80 of 144



Page 81 of 144



Page 82 of 144



Page 83 of 144



Page 84 of 144



Page 85 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority Agenda Item: 11   

June 28, 2018 Annual Board Meeting 

Approval of FY2019 Office of Risk Management Intergovernmental Agreement—Mr. Mike 

Headley 

Recommended Action:   

Motion to approve the FY2019 Intergovernmental Agreement between the Bureau of Administration, 

Office of Risk Management of the State of South Dakota and the SDSTA and authorize the SDSTA 

Executive Director to sign the agreement. 

Attached is the FY2019 Intergovernmental Agreement between the Bureau of Administration, Office of 

Risk Management of the State of South Dakota and the SDSTA. 

See recommended motion below. 

Page 87 of 144



Page 88 of 144



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE 

BUREAU OF ADMINISTRATION,  

OFFICE OF RISK MANAGEMENT 

OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA 

AND THE 

SOUTH DAKOTA SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY AUTHORITY 

This INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (“AGREEMENT”) is made and 

effective the 1st day of July, 2018, between the South Dakota Bureau of Administration, Office 

of Risk Management, 1429 E. Sioux Avenue, Pierre, South Dakota 57501 (“ORM”), and the 

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority, 630 E. Summit, Lead, South Dakota, 57754 

(“SDSTA”) pursuant to SDCL Ch. 1-24 and in particular SDCL 1-24-8. 

Introduction and Purpose 

The State of South Dakota established SDSTA to facilitate the development of the former 

Homestake gold mine into an underground science laboratory (the “Sanford Underground 

Research Facility” or “SURF”) and to lead the operation of SURF. The mission of the SDSTA is 

“to advance compelling underground, multidisciplinary research in a safe work environment and 

to inspire and educate through science, technology and engineering.”   

When operating as an active mine, the Homestake gold mine was regulated by the U.S. 

Mine Safety and Health Administration (“MSHA”) and the South Dakota Department of 

Environment and Natural Resources (“DENR”). SDSTA received title to the Homestake site in 

2006 from Homestake Mining Company of California after the 2003 closure of the mining 

facility.    

MSHA and DENR continued to administer and enforce safety and environmental 

programs until 2008, at which time the SDSTA sought to clarify MSHA’s regulatory role.  

MSHA determined at that time it no longer had regulatory jurisdiction over the safety and health 

operations at the Homestake site due to the completion of mining reclamation and the new 

function of the site.   

The U.S. Occupational Safety and Health Administration’s (“OSHA’s”) 29 CFR 19261 

and 29 CFR 19102 are considered the most applicable of the available standards for safety and 

health for most activities conducted in support of the development of the underground 

laboratory.  MSHA’s 30 CFR3 standards are employed as a best practice for specified 

underground activities (see appendix A).   

Although OSHA standards are being applied to the work conducted at SURF, OSHA 

does not have jurisdictional authority for enforcement of those regulations because SDSTA is for 

the purposes of OSHA standards and regulation a “political subdivision” as defined in 29 CFR 

1975.5 because it is administered by individuals who are appointed by the Governor.    

1 Title 29 Code of Federal Regulations Part 1926, “Safety and Health Regulations for Construction”  
2 Title 29 Code of Federal Regulations Part 1910, “Occupational Safety and Health Standards” 
3 Title 30 Code of Federal Regulations Parts 15, 49, and 57” 

Page 89 of 144



2 

ORM has the responsibility to oversee the state’s risk management activities.  

Accordingly, ORM is the agency that is mandated to provide the inspection and audit of state 

institutions and facilities and has been designated to serve as the agency having jurisdiction 

(“AHJ”) for occupational safety and health at SURF.  

SDSTA has entered into a lease (the “Lease”) with the United States of America, acting 

through the Department of Energy (the “Government”), dated March 29, 2016, whereby SDSTA 

has leased to the Government certain surface and subsurface real estate for the purpose of 

constructing, operating and maintaining the Long Baseline Neutrino Facility (“LBNF”) and the 

Deep Underground Neutrino Experiment (“DUNE”), and related infrastructure (the “Leased 

Space”).  ORM’s jurisdiction hereunder shall not include the Leased Space, but SDSTA and 

ORM shall continue to consult and cooperate concerning occupational safety and health related 

to the Leased Space.  

The purpose of this Agreement is to clarify the roles and responsibilities, expectations 

and communications for ORM to serve as the AHJ for SDSTA in the implementation of the 

occupational safety and health standards. 

This Agreement is authorized pursuant to SDCL Ch. 1-24 and SDCL 1-16H-32. 

Agreement 

A. Safety Standards Applicable to SDSTA.  Until amended in writing by ORM, the safety

standards applicable to SDSTA’s facilities and operations shall be as set out in Appendix A,

attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  The parties agree that ORM may

unilaterally amend Appendix A at any time and in their sole discretion, and all such amendments

shall be incorporated herein effective upon 30 days written notice to SDSTA.

The parties further acknowledge and agree that the agency having jurisdiction over the 

enforcement of building (International Building Code) and fire safety (National Fire Protection 

Association) codes and standards is the City of Lead, South Dakota.  ORM shall not have 

jurisdiction to apply or enforce any codes and standards. 

B. Responsibilities of the ORM4.  ORM shall:

1. Provide for safety, loss control and regulatory compliance audits and inspections of

SDSTA’s documentation, records and facilities;

2. Review claims to identify trends or situations requiring loss prevention efforts;

3. Advise SDSTA on applicable laws, regulations and standards which contribute to

a safe work environment at SURF;

4. Provide for loss control training;

5. Upon request, review contracts for appropriate risk management language;

6. Assist SDSTA with the selection of brokers and insurance companies and in

negotiating to obtain the best product for the best price;

7. Provide enforcement of the safety standards made applicable to SDSTA’s facilities by

this Agreement; and

4 State of South Dakota Risk Management Manual, The Office of Risk Management, June 25, 2009 (is this the 

current revision?) 

Page 90 of 144



3 

8. Provide copies of the results of safety or compliance reviews, inspections, or audits to

SDSTA upon completion.

C. Risk Management Responsibilities of SDSTA5.   SDSTA shall:

1. Be responsible for coordinating and implementing risk management programs within

its departments and at its facilities with the assistance of ORM.  SDSTA will provide a safe 

workplace and conduct operations in a manner that protects employees, contractors, visitors and 

the public from harm.  The SDSTA shall conform to its safety policy: “Perform all work safely, 

with full regard to the well-being of all stakeholders and the environment;”  

2. Perform all activities at SURF in a safe and environmentally sound manner;

3. Pursuant to Section 6.7 of the Property Donation Agreement6 between SDSTA and

Homestake, undertake all measures necessary to comply with federal, state, and local laws and 

regulations, including, without limitation, laws relating to workers’ compensation, mine health 

and safety, and all Environmental, Health and Safety Laws (as defined in the Property Donation 

Agreement), and shall apply in a timely manner for all Environmental Permits (as defined in the 

Property Donation Agreement) and all other permits, licenses and approvals necessary for its 

operations;   

4. Assist ORM in identifying, measuring and minimizing exposures to loss by:

a. Conducting facility inspections to identify and address safety hazards;

b. Conducting services and operations in accordance with applicable laws,

regulations and safety standards;

c. Properly reporting accidents, incidents and unsafe conditions;

d. Reviewing losses to identify trends or situations requiring loss prevention efforts;

e. Ensuring policies and procedures remain current, are communicated to all

employees and enforced;

f. Drafting all contracts with the appropriate risk management language;

g. Communicating changes in exposures to ORM; and

h. Evaluating ORM’s recommendations.

5. Comply with all safety and enforcement directives and actions given by ORM.

6. Comply with requests from ORM for information and documents related to safety or

compliance reviews, inspections or audits, including, to the extent available to SDSTA, any 

such reviews, inspections or audits related to activities in the Leased Space.  

D. Agreement Administration.  The cooperative undertaking herein described shall be

administered by the Parties through their risk management contact persons: ORM through its

Director and SDSTA through its Executive Director or authorized designees as contemplated in

SDCL 1-24-5.

5 State of South Dakota Risk Management Manual, The Office of Risk Management, June 25, 2009 
6 Property Donation Agreement Between and Among Homestake Mining Company of California, The State of 

South Dakota and the South Dakota Science and Technology Authority, April 14, 2006. 

Page 91 of 144



4 

E. Reporting.

SDSTA employees may contact ORM directly and without risk of retaliation if they feel there is 

substantial risk of harm to persons or the environment that is not being addressed by SDSTA 

management. 

F. Site Access Rules.

1. SDSTA will provide reasonable accommodations for ORM to have unencumbered access

to SDSTA facilities and operations.

2. The parties acknowledge and agree that representatives of ORM conducting activities

relating to this Agreement are “Authorized Entrants” as that term as used in the Property

Donation Agreement.

3. Access to underground and other hazardous environments shall be provided in a manner

that is reasonable and safe.

G. Right to Inspect.

1. ORM has the right to inspect SDSTA facilities at will and with no advance notification

when there is reasonable cause.

2. ORM will otherwise provide reasonable notification in advance of scheduled visits.

3. ORM may require SDSTA to undertake third party inspections or oversight visits, or may

contract for such inspection and oversight visits in its own right.

4. SDSTA will provide timely notifications to ORM when third party inspections or

oversight visits are scheduled, and ORM may observe such third-party inspections or

oversight visits at ORM’s discretion.

5. Whether or not ORM participates in third party reviews or inspections, SDSTA will

provide the results and any findings to ORM.

H. Payment of Costs.

SDSTA shall upon request reimburse ORM for extraordinary costs incurred by ORM in 

connection with ORM’s responsibilities hereunder.  The term “extraordinary costs,” as used 

herein, means costs other than the fees and costs of third party consultants and inspectors, travel 

costs of ORM personnel, costs (including reasonable attorney fees) incurred in commencing or 

maintaining enforcement actions and other, similar costs and expenses, but includes costs 

incurred in connection with out-of-state travel expenses incurred by ORM personnel in 

connection with this Agreement.  ORM shall provide SDSTA with a written invoice for costs 

incurred by ORM under this Agreement.  SDSTA will contest any portions of the invoice it 

deems unreasonable and pay any uncontested amount within 30 days of receipt of the invoice.  

SDSTA agrees to pay all uncontested costs and expenses within 45 days of receipt of invoice. 

I. Indemnification and Insurance.

SDSTA shall indemnify and hold the State of South Dakota and its officers, agents and 

employees (“Indemnified Parties”) harmless from and against any and all claims, causes, actions 

or causes of action made or asserted against the Indemnified Parties arising out of related to 

ORM’s duties and responsibilities under this Agreement.  SDSTA shall cause the Indemnified 

Page 92 of 144



5 

 

Parties to be named as additional insureds under SDSTA’s general liability policy.  The limits of 

liability of SDSTA’s general liability policy shall not be less than $75 million.  SDSTA shall 

provide such proof of the existence and enforceability of the insurance required by this paragraph 

as ORM may from time to time reasonably request.  Nothing in this paragraph I shall require 

SDSTA to indemnify ORM or its officers, employees or agents against any claims or losses 

resulting solely from the negligence or intentional acts of ORM or its officers, employees or 

agents. 

J.  Exclusion of Leased Space.   

 

ORM hereby acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Lease.  For so long as the Lease remains in 

force or the parties agree otherwise, ORM’s jurisdiction hereunder shall not include the Leased 

Space.  ORM’s jurisdiction hereunder shall not include the Leased Space, but SDSTA and ORM 

shall continue to consult and cooperate concerning occupational safety and health related to the 

Leased Space. 

 

K.  Duration of Agreement. 

 

This Agreement shall be in effect from July 1, 2018, through June 30, 2019. 

 

L.  Remedies - Enforcement. 

 

ORM is entitled to all remedies reasonably necessary to carry out the terms of this Agreement 

and enforcement of the safety standards made applicable to SDSTA and its facilities by this 

Agreement.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, ORM may pursuant to the terms of 

this Agreement issue an administrative order directing SDSTA to cease operations and/or close 

all or any portion of its facilities until such time as the violation giving rise to the administrative 

order has been resolved to ORM’s reasonable satisfaction.   

 

M.  Retention of Records. 

 

Each party hereto agrees to retain all documentation and records relating to the services and 

inspections provided for hereunder and for payment and reimbursements for expenses under this 

Agreement for a period of three years after termination of this Agreement.  Such records shall be 

available for inspection at any reasonable time by personnel authorized therefore by the State of 

South Dakota. 

 

N.  Funding Out. 

 

This Agreement depends upon the continued availability of appropriate funds and expenditure 

authority from the Legislature for this purpose.  If for any reason the Legislature fails to 

appropriate funds or grant expenditure authority, or funds become unavailable by operation of 

law or federal funds reductions, this Agreement will be terminated by ORM.  Termination for 

any of these reasons is not a default by the ORM nor does it give rise to a claim against ORM. 

 

 

 

Page 93 of 144



6 

O. Nature of Agreement.

This Agreement is intended to be an agreement for services by a public agency as contemplated 

by SDCL 1-24-8.  The parties acknowledge that no separate entity as contemplated by SDCL 

1-24-4 is being created to implement this Agreement.  This Agreement is intended to only

govern the rights and interest of the parties named herein.  It is not intended to, does not and may

not be relied upon to create any rights, substantial or procedural, enforceable at law by any third

party in any matters, civil or criminal.

P. Governing Law-Venue.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 

South Dakota.  Any lawsuit pertaining to or affecting this Agreement shall be venued in Circuit 

Court, Sixth Judicial Circuit, Hughes County, South Dakota. 

Q. Notice.

Any notice or other communication required under this Agreement shall be in writing and sent to 

the address set forth above.  Notices shall be given by and to the Director of ORM, and by and to 

the Executive Director of SDSTA, or such authorized designees as either party may from time to 

time designate in writing.  Notices or communications to or between the parties shall be deemed 

to have been delivered when mailed by first class mail, provided that the notice of default or 

termination shall be sent by registered or certified mail, or, if personally delivered, when 

received by such party. 

R. Filing of Agreement.

The parties acknowledge that the ORM will file a true copy of this Agreement with the Office of 

Attorney General and the Legislative Research Council within 14 days of the execution hereof, 

as required by SDCL 1-24-6.1. 

S. Alterations and Entire Agreement.

Except as provided in section A. of this Agreement, no amendment, alteration or variation of the 

terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by both parties.  No 

oral understanding or agreement not incorporated herein may be binding on any of the parties 

hereto.  Terms expressly stated within the Agreement constitute the entire agreement between 

ORM and SDSTA.  All other prior discussions, communications and representations concerning 

the subject matter of this Agreement are superseded by the terms of this Agreement, except as 

specifically provided herein. 

T. Partial Invalidity.

In the event that any court of competent jurisdiction shall hold any provision of this Agreement 

unenforceable or invalid, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other 

provision hereof. 

Page 94 of 144



7 

 

U.  Authorization of Agreement. 

 

By the signature of their representatives below, ORM and SDSTA certify that approval of this 

Agreement by ordinance, resolution or other appropriate means has been obtained by that 

governmental body’s governing body or officer pursuant to SDCL 1-24-3 and 1-24-6, and that 

the representative is authorized to sign on the party’s behalf.  A copy of any SDSTA authorizing 

resolution or ordinance is attached to this Agreement and incorporated herein by reference. 

 

In Witness hereto the parties signify this Agreement by signatures affixed below: 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Mike Headley                 Date 

Executive Director 

South Dakota Science and Technology 

Authority 

________________________________  

Scott Bollinger                   Date 

Commissioner 

Bureau of Administration 

State of South Dakota 

 

Page 95 of 144



8 

 

Appendix A – SURF Environmental, Health, and Safety Standards 

1.0 Work Place Safety  

 

29 CFR 1910  Occupational Safety and Health Standards  

29 CFR 1926  Safety and Health Regulations for Construction 

30 CFR 15 

30 CFR 49 

30 CFR 56-57/58 

 

30 CFR 57.3200-3401 

30 CFR 7.5060 - .5075 

30 CFR 57.8518 -.8535 

30 CFR Part 57.19000 - .19119 

 

 

ANSI Z358.1-2009 

 

30 CFR 57.11050- .11059 

30 CFR 57.22214 - .22229 (b) 

NFPA 72 

Requirements for Explosives 

MSHA Mine Rescue Teams 

MSHA Safety and Health Standards – 

Underground Metal/Non-Metal Mines 

Ground Control 

Diesel Particulate Matter 

Ventilation – Surface and Underground 

Personnel Hoisting, Wire Ropes, Headframe and 

Sheaves, Conveyances, Hoisting Procedures, 

Shafts, Inspection and Maintenance  

Emergency Eyewash and Shower Equipment 

(Inspection, Maintenance and Use) 

Escapeways and Refuges 

Ventilation and Ventilation Plan 

National Fire Alarm Code 

 

2.0 Building Codes  

 

Title 18 USC Part I Chapter 40.843  Explosives (Licenses and User Permits)  

ANSI Z358.1-2009  Emergency Eyewash and Shower Equipment 

(Installation)  

ANSI/ASHRAE 62-2004  Ventilation for Acceptable Indoor Air Quality  

ASME  

 

Boilers and Pressure Vessel Code (Sections I 

through XII including applicable Code Cases)  

ASME B31.1 (i)  Power Piping  

ASME B31.2 (ii)  Fuel Gas Piping  

ASME B31.3 (iii)  Process Piping  

ASME B31.4 (iv)  Pipeline Transportation Systems for Liquid 

Components  

ASME B31.5 (v)  Refrigeration Piping and Heat Transfer 

Components  

ASME  Cranes and Hoist Standards  

IBC 2015  Building Codes  

NFPA 101  Life Safety Code  

NFPA 110  Emergency and Standby Power Systems  

NFPA 45  Fire Protection for Laboratories Using 

Chemicals  

NFPA 520  Standard on Subterranean Spaces  

NFPA 70 B  Recommended Practice for Electrical Equipment 

Maintenance  

Page 96 of 144



9 

NFPA 70 E Standard for Electrical Safety in the Workplace 

NFPA 70 National Electrical Code  

NFPA 780 Standard for the Installation of Lightning 

Protection Systems (and UL86A)  

SD Lead City Ordinance Occupational Noise Exposure  

Fermilab Policy  Oxygen Deficiency Hazards (ODH)  

3.0 Environmental and Waste Management 

10 CFR 1021 National Environmental Policy Act 

Implementing Procedures  

40 CFR 112 Spill Prevention, Control and Countermeasure 

Procedures  

40 CFR 260-279 Protection of Environment – Hazardous Waste 

Management System (Hazardous Waste 

Regulations)  

40 CFR 262.11  Hazardous Waste Determination  

40 CFR 273  Standard for Universal Waste Management  

40 CFR761  Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCB)  

40 CRF 280  Underground Storage Tanks  

40 CFR 302 (CERCLA) Designation, Reportable Quantities, and 

Notification  

40 CFR 370 Hazardous Chemical Reporting, Community 

Right to Know  

40 CFR 61, Subpart A National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air 

Pollutants  

40 CFR 122 NPDES system 

Guidelines Establishing Test Procedures for the 

Analysis of Pollutants 

49 CFR 171-180 Hazardous Materials Transportation Act  

SD Article 12:62 Weed and Pest Control  

4.0 SD-DENR: Codified Law 

34-44 Asbestos Abatement Training Project  

34A-1 Air Pollution Control  

34A-2 Water Pollution Control  

34A-3A Safe Drinking Water  

34A-6 Solid Waste Management  

34A-9 Environmental Impact of Government Actions  

34A-11 Hazardous Waste Management  

34A-13 Petroleum Inspection and Release Compensation  

46-1 Definitions and General Provisions (Water Rights) 

46-2A Administrative Procedure for Appropriate Water  

46-5 Appropriation of Water  

46-6 Groundwater and Wells  

Page 97 of 144



10 

 

5.0 SD Administrative Rule:  

 

74:36  Air Pollution  

74:31  Asbestos Control Program  

74:50  Compliance Procedures for Water Pollution  

74:54  Groundwater Quality  

74:28  Hazardous Waste  

74:32  Petroleum Inspection and Release Compensation  

74:34  Regulated Substance Discharge  

74:27  Solid Waste  

74:51  Surface Water Quality  

74:52  Surface Water Discharge Permits  

74:55  Underground Injection Control  

74:04  Water Hygiene  

74:50  Compliance Procedures for Water Pollution 

Control  

74:53  Water Supply and Treatment Systems  

74:21  Water Systems Operators  

74:02  Water Rights  

 

6.0 Reference Standards  

 

ASME 31.9 Building Services Piping  

ANSI C2  National Electrical Safety Code  

NFPA 10  Portable Fire Extinguishers  

NFPA 13  Automatic Sprinklers  

NFPA 14  Standpipe and Hose Systems  

NFPA 30  Flammable and Combustible Liquids Code  

NFPA 55  Standard for the Storage, Use, and Handling of 

Compressed Gases and Cryogenic Fluids in 

Portable and Stationary Containers, Cylinders, 

and Tanks.  

  

7.0 Additional Standards  

 

The following are a selection of additional trade organizations and standards that may govern the 

SDSTA’s selection and installation of products.  

 

ACGIH Threshold Limit Values 

American Concrete Institute (ACI) – ACI-318  

American Industrial Hygiene Association (AIHA) 

American Institute of Steel Construction (AISC) – Manual of Steel Construction  

American National Standards Institute (ANSI)  

American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM)  

American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE)  

American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME)  

American Water Works Association (AWWA)  

Page 98 of 144



11 

Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE) 

National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA)  

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA)  

National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) 

National Institute of Standards & Technology (NIST)  

Sanford Underground Research Facility Subterranean Design Criteria (EHS-1000-L3-05) 

Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. (UL)  

Page 99 of 144



Page 100 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority                            Agenda Item: 12    

June 28, 2018 Board Meeting 

 

SDSTA Policies and Procedures—Mr. Mike Headley / Mr. Tim Engel 

 
 

 
Recommended Action:   

Motion to approve new and updated SDSTA policies as presented.  

 

12A. Annual review of SDSTA Policies and Procedures 

➢ Section 1 

o Public Comment Period, new policy 

➢ Section 2 

o Holidays Policy, updated (deleted reference to administrative holidays declared by the 

President) 

o Personnel Benefits Policy, updated (medical benefits updated) 

o Reimbursement of Goods and Services Policy, new policy (request to include itemized 

receipts when submitting expense reports to Finance Office) 

o Photography and Video Policy, new policy  

 

12B. Board members to sign annual statements for 2018 affirming compliance with Financial Conflict 

of Interest, attached—return signed statements to Mandy Knight. 

Page 101 of 144



Page 102 of 144



SOUTH DAKOTA SCIENCE AND 

TECHNLOGY AUTHORITY 

 

Procedure for Public Comment Periods 

 
Pursuant to SDCL 1-25-1 as amended by House Bill 1172 in the 2018 

Legislative Session the procedure for conducting public comment periods 

during meetings of the South Dakota Science and Technology Authority 

(SDSTA) shall be as follows: 

 

The chair of the SDSTA shall reserve a period for public comment, limited 

at the chair’s discretion, at each meeting. 

 

Before the beginning of the meeting, all persons who wish to make 

comments during the comment period shall indicate their desire to do so on a 

form that will be provided by the Executive Director. The form shall indicate 

the person’s name, city of residence and generally describe the matter or 

matters on which the person wishes to comment. 

 

The amount of time allocated to each interested person who wishes to make 

comments will be determined at the chair’s discretion at each meeting. 

 

Comments must be limited to matters which are under the jurisdiction of the 

SDSTA. 

 

All persons making public comments at meetings of the SDSTA must do so 

in a manner that maintains civility. Comments which contain offensive 

language or profanity will not be tolerated. 

 

 

 
Adopted June 28, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 103 of 144



Public Comment Form

Full Name: 

City of Residence: 

General Subject Matter of Comments: 

Page 104 of 144



HOLIDAYS POLICY 

 

All employees at the South Dakota Science and Technology Authority (SDSTA) receive 
their regular pay for ten legal holidays plus any other day proclaimed as a holiday by the 
Governor of South Dakota or the President of the United States. The SDSTA 
recognizes the following holidays: 

 New Year’s Day    January 1 

 Martin Luther King, Jr. Day   Third Monday in January 

 President’s Day    Third Monday in February 

 Memorial Day    Last Monday in May 

 Independence Day    July 4 

 Labor Day     First Monday in September  

 Native Americans Day   Second Monday in October 

 Veterans Day    November 11 

 Thanksgiving     Fourth Thursday in November 

 Christmas     December 25 

If a holiday from the list falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday is observed as the 
paid holiday. If a holiday falls on a Sunday, it is observed on the following Monday. 
Holiday pay is prorated based on the hours worked for employees who are working less 
than full time. For information about holiday pay provisions, contact the Human 
Resources Administrator. 

Eligible employees will receive eight (8) hours of pay at their straight-time hourly rate of 
pay for each designated holiday. Employees required to work on the designated holiday 
will be paid their straight-time hourly rate of pay for all hours worked, plus their holiday 
pay for eight (8) hours. 

Page 105 of 144



Page 106 of 144



Personnel Benefits Policy 

It is the policy of the South Dakota Science and Technology Authority (SDSTA) to offer 
eligible employees a variety of benefit programs designed to help plan for retirement 
and to meet the financial burdens that can result from illness or disability. Eligibility for 
benefits is discussed in the Employment Policy. 

A. Life and Accidental Death & Dismemberment (AD&D) insurance 

Both employer-paid life and AD&D insurances are provided for each employee, with 
a $50,000 benefit. Employees may purchase additional coverage at their own 
expense. 

B. Long-Term disability 

Employer-paid long term disability insurance is provided for each employee. 
Following a ninety (90) day waiting period, the monthly benefit consists of sixty 
percent (60%) of the first $15,000 of monthly pre-disability earnings. 

C. Health insurance 

Employer-paid health insurance is provided for each employee. Employees may 
purchase dependent coverage through SDSTA’s group plan. Based upon funding, 
the SDSTA may elect to help subsidize the cost of dependent coverage. Employees 
may purchase health insurance coverage for themselves and their dependent(s) 
through SDSTA’s group plan. Based upon funding, the SDSTA may elect to help 
subsidize the cost of health insurance coverage. The coverage and premiums vary 
from year to year. 

D. Dental 

Employer-paid dental insurance is provided for each employee. Employees may 
purchase dependent coverage at their own expense. The coverage available varies 
from year to year. 

E. Vision 

Employer-paid vision care is provided for each employee. Employees may purchase 
dependent coverage at their own expense. The coverage available varies from year 
to year. 

F. Medical expense and dependent care flexible spending accounts 

Employees may make pre-tax contributions to a flexible spending account for 
qualified medical expenses not covered by an insurance plan and dependent care 
expenses. 

G. Paid holidays 

Page 107 of 144



Ten (10) holidays per year plus any administrative holidays proclaimed by the 
Governor of South Dakota or the President of the United States: 

• New Year’s Day
• Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
• President’s Day
• Memorial Day
• Independence Day
• Labor Day
• Native American Day
• Veterans Day
• Thanksgiving
• Christmas

See additional details in the Holidays Policy. 

H. Longevity pay

Full-time employees are eligible for longevity pay after seven (7) years of service.
See Years of Service and Longevity Pay Policy for complete details.

I. Retirement

1. South Dakota Retirement System (SDRS):

Employees are required to contribute 6% of their earnings (pre-tax) each pay
period beginning at their date of hire. The SDSTA will also match the six percent
(6%) contribution each pay period. After three years of contributory service, the
employee is entitled to a vested monthly lifetime retirement benefit.

2. SDRS Supplemental Retirement Plan (SRP):

Employees may make additional pre-tax or after-tax Roth contributions through
the SDRS Supplemental Retirement Plan. These contributions are not matched
by the SDSTA.

3. Special Pay Plan:

The SDSTA is a participating unit of the Special Pay Plan, which provides
eligible employees with two types of tax-efficient savings options, as well as
additional retirement benefits. Under the Special Pay Plan, eligible members’
lump-sum termination payouts are permanently exempt from Social Security
taxes and, in addition, are free from federal income taxation until withdrawn from
the plan. A participant has the option to invest the funds and any earnings will
grow tax deferred until distributed from the plan. Withdrawals may be in the form
of a single, lump-sum payment or as additional monthly retirement benefits.

Page 108 of 144



4. Employees who have reached normal retirement age of 65 with at least three 
years of contributory service are eligible for unreduced retirement benefits under 
the SDRS. Normal retirement is the first of the month of the employee’s 65th 
birthday. However, there is no mandatory retirement age at the SDSTA. 

5. Early retirement: 

Employees may retire as early as age 55 and receive retirement benefits if they 
have at least three years of contributory service. If payments begin immediately, 
the employee’s monthly lifetime retirement benefits will be reduced. 

6. Disability: 

If an employee is unable to work because of a disability expected to last one 
year or longer, they may be eligible to receive a monthly benefit from SDRS. 
The SDRS also provides disability coverage for employees who have three 
years of consecutive contributory service. However, if the employee is 
accidentally disabled while performing the usual duties of their job, they are 
immediately eligible to apply for benefits. The employee must be a contributing 
member at the time they become disabled. 

Additional information regarding retirement benefits is available at 
http://www.sdrs.sd.gov/spp/. 

J. Social security 

As mandated by law. 

K. Training and professional development 

The SDSTA does not have an education or tuition assistance program. However, a 
Department Director and/or Executive Director of the SDSTA may determine the 
need for a variety of training for all or selected employees which may include 
professional development training, computer training, safety training, certifications, 
license exams and other work-related training opportunities. Employees are required 
to complete a consent form which must be approved by the Department Director 
and/or Executive Director prior to any training/professional development 
commitments. The time employees spend taking either mandatory or supervisor 
recommended training is considered time worked. 

Fees for training/professional development are not automatically reimbursed. 
Professional memberships/certifications/licenses or renewals that are work-related 
will be reimbursed at the discretion of the Department Director and/or the Executive 
Director. In cases where a fee exceeds $1,000.00, and an employee voluntarily 
leaves the employ of the SDSTA within one (1) year following training/certification, 
the employee shall repay all such training-related expenses paid by the SDSTA. 
Exceptions may be made for an employee unable to continue due to illness or injury, 
dismissal or a reduction in workforce. An employee’s obligation to reimburse SDSTA 
as provided in this paragraph may not be enforced by withholding salary if doing so 
would result in the employee’s salary being less than the applicable minimum wage.  

Page 109 of 144

http://www.sdrs.sd.gov/spp/


L. Employee Assistance Program (EAP)

The EAP was established to provide professional, confidential assistance for any
type of personal problem such as alcohol and other substance abuse, marital and
family difficulties, financial and legal troubles and emotional distress.

All full-time employees and their dependents are eligible to receive assistance
through the EAP to assess problems, provide short-term counseling and, if
necessary, make a referral to appropriate community and private services. The EAP
will not reveal any information that the individual discloses to the EAP except in the
following circumstances:

• The employee consents in writing

• The law requires disclosure, or

• It is believed that life or safety is threatened by non-disclosure

Employees are responsible for their performance and for taking constructive action 
to resolve any personal problems that affect or threaten to affect their on-the-job 
behavior. Managers and supervisors are responsible for remaining alert to all 
instances of substandard work performance and bringing these instances to the 
attention of the employee, along with an offer of assistance, at the earliest indication 
of a problem. 

When an employee’s job performance or attendance is unsatisfactory or there 
appears to be signs of other problems during the work day, the supervisor should 
counsel the employee in consultation with Human Resources. If an employee 
appears to be unable or unwilling to correct the situation, s/he may be referred to the 
EAP to assist in the resolution of the problem. Depending on the situation, the 
employee may accept or refuse participation in the EAP. However, there may be 
situations where continued employment with the SDSTA may be contingent upon 
the employee calling the EAP for assistance. Participation in the EAP in no way 
relieves the employee of the responsibility to meet acceptable work performance 
and attendance standards. 

Employees who need to visit the EAP during regular working hours must use 
vacation or sick leave benefits, if available. If illness is involved, sick or vacation 
benefits or unpaid time off may be used on the same basis that it is granted for other 
health problems. 

M. Workers’ Compensation

As required by law. If injured, an employee must notify his or her supervisor
immediately. All injuries must be reported to the Environment, Safety and Health
Department and a First Report of Injury completed and signed within three (3) days
of the injury. Failure by the employee to report an injury on time may result in denial
of the claim.

Page 110 of 144



Employees should refer to the insurance summary plan description provided at the 
benefit enrollment meeting for details of each insurance plan or contact the Human 
Resources Administrator. Eligibility for specific benefits under the SDSTA’s insurance 
program is governed at all times by the complete terms of the respective group 
insurance policy. 

The SDSTA’s benefit programs are subject to change without notice. Employees should 
contact the Human Resources Administrator for details concerning any of their benefit 
plans. 

An employee’s medical, dental, vision and life insurance will cease on the last day of the 
month of termination. Continuation of Benefits, which include medical, dental and vision, 
may be available under Title X of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act 
(COBRA) Law of 1985 upon termination. The employee must contact the Human 
Resource Administrator if continued coverage is desired. 

Vacation and sick leave benefits are described in the Leave Policy. 

Page 111 of 144



Page 112 of 144



PHOTOGRAPHY AND VIDEO POLICY (SECTION 2 OF MANUAL) 

The South Dakota Science and Technology Authority (SDSTA) owns all  copyright and 
other intellectual property interests in and to any photos, videos or recordings taken by 
SDSTA employees while on duty and in the normal course of business. Photos, videos 
or recordings cannot be sold or used for profit by any SDSTA employee. Employees are 
not entitled to additional compensation for producing photos, videos or recordings. 

Employee likenesses may appear in photos, videos and recordings which could be used 
in news articles and promotional material for the Sanford Lab.  Employees are not 
entitled to any additional compensation on account of such use of their likeness. 

All requests related to photographs or videos for commercial use shall  be referred to 
the SDSTA Communications Department.  

Page 113 of 144



 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 114 of 144



REIMBURSEMENT OF GOODS AND SERVICES POLICY (SECTION 2 OF MANUAL) 

When requesting otherwise allowable reimbursement for goods, services, or meals, 
including those charged to a hotel room, an itemized invoice, receipt, or ticket, not just a 
credit card slip, must be provided.   

Page 115 of 144



 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 116 of 144



Conflict of Interest Statement 

In accordance with Article VII of the South Dakota Science and Technology Authority 

(SDSTA) Financial Conflict of Interest Policy, this statement affirms that the 

undersigned: 

a. Has received a copy of the Financial Conflict of Interest Policy,

b. Has read and understands the policy, and

c. Has agreed to comply with the policy.

Signature Date 

Printed Name 

Page 117 of 144



 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 118 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority Agenda Item: 13 

June 28, 2018 Annual Board Meeting  

Executive Session—Chairperson Casey Peterson 

Recommended Action:   

Motion to enter executive session to discuss personnel matters and to consult with legal counsel 

concerning contractual and legal matters.  

Meeting closed to public during executive session. See recommended motion below.

Page 119 of 144



 

 

  

 

Page 120 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority Agenda Item: 14 

June 28, 2018 Annual Board Meeting  

Report from Executive Session—Chairperson Casey Peterson 

Recommended Action:   

“The board consulted with legal counsel concerning contractual and legal matters. No action was 

taken.” 

OR 

…as discussed and stated otherwise 

See recommended motion below…

Page 121 of 144



 

 

  

 

Page 122 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority Agenda Item: 15 

June 28, 2018 Board Meeting  

Approval of Memorandum of Understanding—Mr. Mike Headley 

Recommended Action:   

Motion to approve Memorandum of Understanding with Fermi Research Alliance, LLC, and to 

authorize the SDSTA Chairperson, in consultation with the Executive Director and Legal Counsel, to 

finalize the terms of the MOU and for the Chairperson to sign it. 

Attached is the draft Memorandum of Understanding between SDSTA and FRA, LLC.

Page 123 of 144



 

 

  

 

Page 124 of 144



-1-

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  

BETWEEN  

SOUTH DAKOTA SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY AUTHORITY 

AND  

FERMI RESEARCH ALLIANCE, LLC 

 This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) is entered into by and between the South 

Dakota Science and Technology Authority (“SDSTA”), as operator of the Sanford Underground 

Research Facility (“SURF”) and Fermi Research Alliance, LLC (“FRA”), as operator of the 

Fermi National Accelerator Laboratory (“Fermilab”) (referred to hereinafter as the “Parties”) 

under U.S. Department of Energy (“DOE”) Contract Number DE-AC02-07CH11359. 

Purpose and Vision 

This MOU contemplates joint activities between FRA and SDSTA, acting as partners for 

the purposes of the Long Baseline Neutrino Facility / Deep Underground Neutrino Experiment 

(LBNF/DUNE or the “Project”), which are intended to facilitate the safe and otherwise 

successful operation of SURF and construction and operation of the far-site detector for the 

LBNF/DUNE Project. FRA operates and manages Fermilab, which is the lead laboratory for 

LBNF/DUNE, and host laboratory to LBNF/DUNE in Batavia, Illinois, and Lead, South Dakota. 

SDSTA owns and operates SURF, which is the supporting laboratory for LBNF/DUNE in Lead, 

South Dakota.  

The Parties acknowledge that the successful and safe completion of LBNF and 

DUNE construction and successful transition to experimental operations is a foundational 

imperative for the future success of both Fermilab and SURF and therefore must be the 

paramount objective of both FRA and SDSTA.  

The Parties further acknowledge that success executing LBNF/DUNE requires fostering a 

sustainable, long-term federal/state/local/international/private partnership that will create a 

platform for world-leading underground science that addresses fundamental questions about the 

nature of the universe. Success also requires that SURF operate in a safe and efficient manner in 

accordance with standards jointly agreed to between SDSTA and FRA, as well as all applicable 

state and federal laws. In addition to the core vision explained herein, expansion of educational 

opportunities and encouragement of economic development are priorities of both Parties.  

Page 125 of 144



  

-2- 

 

 

Environment, Safety, and Health 

 

 The Parties acknowledge their full and steadfast commitment to the safety of persons and 

property, protection of the environment, attention to the concerns of the surrounding 

communities, and respect for cultural sensitivities, including but not limited to those of Native 

Americans as they relate to the Black Hills region of South Dakota.   

 

Scope and Applicability 

 

This MOU relates to all DOE-sponsored activities funded through FRA at SURF in Lead, 

SD, and recognizes the mutual interests of the Parties as well as the need for cooperation while 

pursuing the goals of scientific research during the duration of the LBNF Project and DUNE.  

Coordination among the Parties regarding the LBNF/DUNE Project is necessary to ensure 

project success and efficient and safe operations at SURF while meeting LBNF/DUNE 

requirements.   

 

 

Contributions of Parties 

 

SDSTA owns and operates SURF, which has been selected by the international particle 

physics community and DOE as the “far site” of the LBNF/DUNE project. SURF is also the host 

for several other DOE-funded experiments, as well as experiments funded by third parties. The 

State of South Dakota facilitated the donation of the facility to SDSTA and to date has made 

financial contributions to facilitate acquisition and development of the site (public and private) of 

approximately $150 million. Because SDSTA owns and operates the facility, the success of the 

LBNF/DUNE project requires the best efforts, cooperation, and commitment of SDSTA.  

 

FRA manages and operates Fermilab, which was chosen by DOE and entrusted by the 

international particle-physics community to construct LBNF and establish the international 

collaboration for DUNE, as well as to serve as the host laboratory for LBNF and DUNE in 

Illinois and South Dakota. As such, the success of the LBNF/DUNE project requires the best 

efforts, cooperation, and commitment of FRA. 

 

The safe and effective operation of SURF is critical to the success of LBNF/DUNE. To 

that end, SDSTA is responsible for site-wide safety, security, and emergency management at 

SURF. For its part, FRA is responsible for the safety of FRA staff and subcontractors, and for 

supporting and strengthening SURF’s capabilities and ensuring that SDSTA is best situated to 

meet all applicable construction, safety, and operations responsibilities. 

 

 

Governance 

 

This MOU describes a governance model that integrates a number of existing and 

anticipated bilateral agreements between the Parties. This governance model reflects the roles of 

Page 126 of 144



-3-

Fermilab and SURF as the host and supporting laboratories, respectively, for LBNF/DUNE in 

South Dakota, and defines the roles and responsibilities, conflict resolution, lines of 

communication, and governing regulations that apply to FRA and SDSTA. Under existing and 

anticipated bilateral agreements between FRA and SDSTA that provide funding through DOE 

Contract Number DE-AC02-07CH11359 (the “Prime Contract”), both Parties are subject to 

certain requirements of federal government contractors, including requirements that flow from 

the Prime Contract, Federal Acquisition Regulations (“FAR”) and Department of Energy 

Acquisition Regulations (“DEAR”), and federal law. Nothing in this MOU changes or otherwise 

relieves either party from requirements under existing bilateral agreements.  

A. Standard Forms of Agreements

The Parties have entered into or expect to enter into contracts that, collectively, make up

the governance model contributing to the successful delivery of the LBNF/DUNE project and 

reflect the following relationships: 

• Traditional Prime/Subcontractor

• Landlord/Tenant

• Easement Owner/Assignee

A listing of the existing contracts and their purpose is set out below. Future agreements between 

the Parties may be entered into and appended herein without executing any modification or 

revision to this MOU, unless expressly requested by one of the Parties. 

B. Contracts

Existing Contracts Purpose Parties 

SURF Services Operations (not construction)  FRA – SDSTA  

Ross Shaft Refurb Refurbishment construction  FRA – SDSTA  

LBNF Staff Services Engineering support to the LBNF project FRA – SDSTA  

DOE Lease Land lease SDSTA – DOE  

DOE Easement Temporary construction easement SDSTA – DOE 

SDSTA Easements Third party easements  SDSTA – Barrick  

SDSTA – Lead  

Homestake PDA Transfer of property to SDSTA Homestake – SDSTA 

Planned Contracts 

Ross Hoist Ops LBNF Support Service for exclusive  FRA – SDSTA 

use of Ross Shaft during Project  

construction (with limited exceptions) 

Reliability Projects (individual) FRA – SDSTA  

Easement assignments Assignment of third party easements  SDSTA – TBD  

Licenses Access  SDSTA & FRA 

Page 127 of 144



  

-4- 

 

Additionally, the Parties recognize that in the course of the FRA-SDSTA alliance to 

execute LBNF/DUNE there are and will be a number of activities that are implied but not 

expressly stated in existing contracts, including: 

 

• SDSTA is providing access to SURF to facilitate the construction of LBNF/DUNE  

• SDSTA is facilitating access (for FRA and its concomitant DOE oversight) to certain 

third-party property  

• Participation in various DOE and other reviews  

• Assessments, evaluations, and/or certain audit activities. 

 The Parties acknowledge that in order for the LBNF/DUNE project to be successful, each 

must participate in good faith in the types of activities identified above. To the extent that any of 

the activities create a material burden on resources, the Parties agree to formalize the activity as a 

requirement in an existing or future agreement. 

 

Without committing to enter into any future agreements and understanding that any such 

future agreement is contingent upon available funds and other requirements, the following future 

agreements might be required:  

 

• Future Contract - DUNE Operations Support  

• Long Term - Decommissioning Plan (consistent with the latest version of said Plan).   

 As the LBNF/DUNE project progresses, and as the level of future operations-

engagements increase, the Parties understand that the present relationship based on traditional 

contractor/subcontractor and landlord/lessee may not be optimal. In the event a different 

governance and/or contracting model is required, the parties agree to work together in good faith 

to establish an appropriate future model of operations. As the LBNF/DUNE initiative approaches 

milestones, the Parties will consider appropriate adjustments to the underlying agreements.  

  

C. Roles and Responsibilities 

The Parties recognize and anticipate the ongoing contributions of their respective 

representatives to the success of LBNF/DUNE as follows:     

 

SDSTA Executive Director (ED) and SURF Laboratory Director      

• Ensure SDSTA performance and alignment in support of this MOU and all other 

agreements between SDSTA, FRA, and/or DOE 

• Resolve conflicting priorities at SURF to ensure the execution of LBNF/DUNE, the 

success of which is necessary to the success of SDSTA, while recognizing the needs of 

other DOE-funded experiments hosted at SURF 

• Communicate with and be responsive to local governments, state officials, SDSTA Board 

of Directors  

 

 

 

 

Page 128 of 144



-5-

SDSTA Board 

• Oversee activities of SDSTA ED

• Report to South Dakota Governor’s Office and Legislature

• Advise and support SDSTA mission

SDSTA ESH Director 

• Develop and implement the ESH Program in support of SDSTA line managers

• Coordinate with FRA to monitor and maintain common expectations and standards for

worker safety at SURF across all areas

• Oversee and assure ESH performance to SDSTA ED

• Foster a strong culture of safety and continuous improvement

• Report operational incidents to FRA

FRA Board 

• On behalf of FRA members, Universities Research Association (URA) and The

University of Chicago provide oversight and guidance to Fermilab leadership

• Advise and support for Fermilab mission

FRA SD Services Division Head 

• Assure SDSTA performance and alignment in support of this MOU and all other

agreements between SDSTA, FRA, and/or DOE

• Coordinate FRA and DOE-sponsored activities at SURF

• Liaise and communicate with Fermilab functional resources

• Arrange and support DOE and FRA-related visits incl. DUNE collaborators

• Primary point of contact among Fermilab, DOE site office and SDSTA leadership

• Maintain an integrated Risk Management Plan at SURF

• Represent FRA DOE interests as a part of SDSTA’s Emergency Response Plan

FRA Deputy Director for LBNF 

• Ensure DOE and Fermilab mission success at SURF

• Direct and advocate for LBNF/DUNE Project

• Communicate with and be responsive to FRA Board, Fermilab Director and DOE

FRA Chief Safety Officer 

• Establish ESH requirements and expectations between FRA and SDSTA with focus on

maintaining common expectations and standards for worker safety at SURF across all

areas

• Develop and implement the FRA ESH Assurance Program in support of SDSTA

Operations

• Provide support and subject matter expertise to FRA SD Services Division Head

• Liaise with DOE ESH Assurance Programs

• Communicate with Fermilab Director and FRA Deputy Director for LBNF about overall

safety performance at SURF and serves as primary point-of-contract for safety related to

FRA-supported activities to DOE and other stakeholders

Page 129 of 144



  

-6- 

 

D. Communications 

FRA and SDSTA will collaborate on communications and public affairs activities that 

relate to the scope of this MOU. SDSTA recognizes that FRA must follow certain requirements 

and protocols – including Prime Contract Clause I.72, DEAR 952.204-75 and related procedures 

and processes from the Department of Energy – that also flow to SDSTA as subcontractor. FRA 

recognizes that SDSTA must comply with certain statutory requirements, such as SDCL 1-16H-

38 (informational budget and other reporting to the Governor's Office of Economic 

Development), SDCL Ch. 1-25 (open meetings), and SDCL Ch. 1-27 (open records), as well as 

reporting to the appointing authority (Office of the Governor) and keeping the Legislature, 

citizens of South Dakota, and other stakeholders informed concerning its activities. Both parties 

agree to work in good faith to accommodate their respective obligations, and to establish a 

separate communications and public affairs protocol to implement these obligations and other 

processes.   

 

E. Ethics and Compliance — Conflicts of Interest 

The Parties maintain and execute robust ethics and compliance programs and 

acknowledge the criticality of such programs to the success of LBNF/DUNE. The Parties further 

acknowledge that existing and anticipated bilateral agreements that provide funding through the 

Prime Contract require compliance with ethics and compliance rules applicable to federal 

government contractors.  

 

The Parties acknowledge the potential for conflicts of interest related to participation in 

delivery of the LBNF/DUNE project or in supporting operational activities at SURF and commit 

to work diligently to identify apparent or actual conflicts, and develop mitigation plans as 

appropriate. Both Parties’ ethics and compliance programs are designed, in part, to facilitate the 

management of conflicts as they arise.  

 

F. Disputes 

The Parties acknowledge that even in the most successful venture, disputes might arise 

that require resolution. In all instances, including in the resolution of disagreements and disputes, 

the Parties will endeavor in good faith to promote the success of LBNF/DUNE, which the Parties 

acknowledge is of paramount importance to the long-term success of Fermilab and SURF. 

 

To the extent any such disputes arise in connection with an existing contract between the 

Parties, the dispute resolution process set out in that contract will govern.   

 

Disputes concerning conflicts among non-LBNF/DUNE scientific occupants at SURF,  

will be resolved as follows: A number of documents, interfaces, meetings and other tools (such 

as databases for managing the number of underground personnel as well as the transport of 

materials) will be utilized for identifying and managing needs for limited resources at SURF.  

The agreements with each non-LBNF/DUNE research group state that shared laboratory spaces 

will be coordinated by SURF and that any conflicts will be resolved by SDSTA. The SDSTA 

Science Director (or designee) will endeavor to manage conflicts with experiment groups. The 

SURF Laboratory Director has oversight responsibility for all facility resources outside 

LBNF/DUNE leased space and will adjudicate issues that cannot otherwise be resolved. Specific 

Page 130 of 144



-7-

instances may require the SURF Laboratory Director (or designee) to define allocations of the 

total underground occupancy to specific groups when occupancy numbers near the underground 

personnel limit as stated in the SURF "Facility Access—Underground" policy.  

With respect to disputes involving LBNF/DUNE, the Parties will utilize the following 

dispute resolution process. First, FRA Far-Site Conventional Facilities Manager will attempt to 

resolve the matter with the SURF Laboratory Director (or designee). Second, if no resolution is 

agreed upon, the matter will be escalated to the FRA Deputy Director for LBNF and SURF 

Laboratory Director. Third, if the FRA Deputy Director for LBNF and SURF Laboratory 

Director cannot resolve the matter, the Parties agree to participate in non-binding mediation. If 

the Parties cannot agree on a mediator, they shall each designate a mediator, who shall then agree 

upon a third mediator. The mediator chosen by the mediators designated by the Parties shall then 

attempt to resolve the dispute. Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, any such mediation must 

be concluded within 90 days of first being presented for mediation. Matters requiring resolution 

sooner than 90 days shall be expedited to the fullest extent possible.   

For all other disputes, the Parties will utilize the following dispute resolution process. 

First, the head of the respective departments most directly affected by the dispute will attempt to 

resolve the matter. Second, if no resolution is agreed upon, the matter will be escalated to 

respective laboratory directors. Third, if the laboratory directors cannot resolve the matter, the 

Parties agree to participate in non-binding mediation. If the Parties cannot agree on a mediator, 

they shall each designate a mediator, who shall then agree upon a third mediator. The mediator 

chosen by the mediators designated by the Parties shall then attempt to resolve the dispute. 

Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, any such mediation must be concluded within 90 days of 

first being presented for mediation. Matters requiring resolution sooner than 90 days shall be 

expedited to the fullest extent possible. 

Nothing herein is intended to limit the right of either party to seek resolution in a court of 

competent jurisdiction if the internal dispute resolution process described herein fails or if the 

matter requires resolution prior to the time necessary to participate in this internal dispute 

resolution process.    

Each party shall bear its own attorney fees and related costs incurred in connection with 

the resolution of disputes under this clause. The parties will share equally in the fees and costs of 

any mediator.  

G. Insurance and Liability

The parties acknowledge that risk management is a key component of the successful

delivery of the LBNF/DUNE project, and commit to working together, including with the 

various third-party stakeholders, to facilitate risk analysis and management. Without limiting the 

generality of the foregoing, the parties recognize that the Property Donation Agreement among 

SDSTA, Homestake Mining Company of California and others (the “PDA”) imposes certain 

insurance and other risk management requirements as a condition to SDSTA’s ongoing 

occupancy and operation of SURF. The Parties will work diligently to ensure compliance with 

all insurance and other risk management requirements of the PDA and DOE, as well as the 

Page 131 of 144



  

-8- 

 

applicable corporate and/or site-specific requirements of SDSTA and FRA, provided those 

requirements are in writing. 

 

H. Site Access and Control 

SDSTA has established a process for access to the SURF site, which FRA will follow 

throughout the life of the Project. SDSTA will be the single point of access for contractors and 

scientists, with the exception of LBNF/DUNE. FRA is responsible for its sponsored personnel, 

including LBNF/DUNE. FRA shall control access to DOE or FRA leased spaces relating to 

LBNF/DUNE. FRA is responsible for ensuring that its personnel and visitors comply with SURF 

site rules. 

 

I. Decommissioning  

The parties recognize the need for the prompt adoption of a reasonable decommissioning 

plan, keeping in mind the requirement to avoid unfunded obligations. Any such plan must take 

into account the need to remove or abandon in place (as appropriate and safe) experiment 

infrastructure, safely secure the relevant portions of SURF, and address any ongoing security, 

monitoring or other requirements. The Parties decommissioning plan will be consistent with the 

latest version of the LBNF/DUNE Preliminary Decommissioning Plan. 

 

 

General Provisions 

 

A. Duration 

 The initial term of this MOU shall be five years, with the option to renew upon mutual 

written agreement of the Parties for additional terms of one year per renewal. 

 

 Upon expiration of the term of this MOU (as renewed), the conclusion of civil 

construction of LBNF/DUNE, the cessation of funding for LBNF/DUNE, or other substantial 

change in circumstances, whichever occurs first, the Parties will as appropriate given the 

circumstances in good faith renegotiate the terms of this MOU. 

 

 During the term of this MOU, including any renewal terms, the Parties will at least 

annually review and update the terms hereof, including any necessary and appropriate updates to 

Addenda or Exhibits.   

 

 Anything in the foregoing notwithstanding, this MOU shall terminate upon sixty (60) 

days written notice given by either Party to the other of any of the following events: 

 

 (a)  FRA is no longer the Maintenance and Operation prime contractor for Fermilab 

 National Accelerator Laboratory; 

 (b)  SDSTA no longer has ownership or control of SURF; 

 (c)  Permanent cessation of funding for LBNF/DUNE; or 

 (d)  Any other change in circumstances so substantial as to affect the underlying nature 

 and purpose of this MOU.    

Page 132 of 144



  

-9- 

 

  

B. Other 

This MOU does not create any legally binding obligations between or among the Parties.  

 

The conduct of cooperative activities contemplated by this MOU is subject to the 

availability of funding, personnel, and other resources. 

 

The Parties are each responsible for their respective costs incurred in participating in 

cooperative activities under this MOU. 

 

Any activities agreed to under this MOU, activities agreed to in addenda under this 

MOU, or agreements developed as a result of this MOU will be in accordance with applicable 

laws, regulations, and agreements to which each party is subject, as well as with the Property 

Donation Agreement (PDA) between and among Homestake Mining Company of California, the 

State of South Dakota, and SDSTA.  

 

 

 

 

Signed: 

 

 

_______________________________________ ______________________ 

Mike Headley Date 

Executive Director  

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority                                       

 

 

_______________________________________ ______________________ 

Nigel Lockyer Date 

Laboratory Director 

Fermi Research Alliance, LLC  

 

 

Page 133 of 144



Page 134 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority             Agenda Item: 16   

June 28, 2018 Annual Board Meeting  

 

Report on Nominating Committee—Mr. Dana Dykhouse 

 
 

 
Recommended Action:   

Informational. 

Nominating Committee Report 

 

May 31, 2018  

 

Participants: 

Mr. Dana Dykhouse, SDSTA Board of Director and Nominating Committee Chair 

Dr. Ani Aprahamian, SDSTA Board of Director and Nominating Committee Member 

  
Mr. Dykhouse and Dr. Aprahamian communicated as the nominating committee on May 31, 2018 for 

the purpose of nominating the slate officers for the 2018-2019 board year. The slate of officers is as 

follows:  

 

Chairperson: Mr. Casey Peterson  

Vice-Chairperson: Mr. Dana Dykhouse 

Vice-Chairperson: Mr. Ron Wheeler  

Secretary Treasurer: Ms. Patricia Lebrun  

 

The nominating committee has contacted all of the candidates and they are each willing to serve in this 

capacity for another year. 

Page 135 of 144



Page 136 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority             Agenda Item: 17   

June 28, 2018 Annual Board Meeting  

 

Election of Officers—Chairperson Casey Peterson 

 
 

 
Recommended Action:  
Motion to accept the report from the nominating committee and to elect the slate of officers as discussed. 

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority 

Election Procedures Policy 

Adopted 6/24/08 

 

The Board of Directors shall follow the following procedure for the nomination and election of officers. 

A. The nomination and election process shall be held in open session. 

B. At the last meeting of the Board before the Annual Meeting, the Chairperson shall appoint a Nominating 

Committee. 

C. The following procedure shall be utilized at the Annual Meeting: 

1. The Chairperson shall call for the report of the Nominating Committee. 

2. After the Nominating Committee reports, the Chairperson shall ask if any Board member intends to make 

additional nominations. 

3. If no Board member indicates the intention to make additional nominations, the Chairperson shall call for a 

motion to elect the slate recommended by the Nominating Committee. 

4. If any Board member indicates the intention to make an additional nomination for any office, the slate 

recommended by the Nominating Committee shall be deemed rejected and the following procedure shall be 

utilized:  

a. The Chairperson shall call for oral nominations for the office of Chairperson. Once it appears that all 

nominations have been made, a motion that nominations cease would be in order.  This motion may be 

made with or without a call for such motion by the Chairperson. 

b. If there is only one nominee, a motion that all nominations cease and that the nominee be elected 

Chairperson would be in order. This motion may be made with or without a call for such motion by the 

Chairperson. 

c. If there is more than one nominee, nominations shall continue until there is a successful motion that 

nominations cease. 

d. Upon passage of a motion that nominations cease, the Chairperson shall call for a vote. Each Board 

member shall announce his or her vote out loud. Counsel for the Authority shall tabulate the vote and 

announce the results. 

e. The successful candidate shall immediately take office as Chairperson and conduct the remainder of the 

election and the meeting. 

f. The Chairperson shall follow the procedure set forth above for each of the remaining offices. 

D. Pursuant to SDCL 1-16H-11, the affirmative vote of no less than four Board members is necessary to elect any 

officer. If no candidate receives four votes, the Board will vote twice more. If no candidate receives four votes after 

three attempts, the election for that office will be deemed adjourned until the next meeting of the Board. At the 

next meeting, the Board shall commence the election procedure set forth above in Section C.4, but only as to any 

office not filled at the prior meeting. This procedure shall continue from meeting-to-meeting until a candidate 

receives at least four votes.  Pursuant to Article III, Section 1 of the Bylaws, the officers in office as of the 

commencement of the Annual Meeting shall remain in office until their successors are duly elected. 

This policy shall remain in effect until specifically rescinded or modified.  

Page 137 of 144



 

 

  

 

Page 138 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority Agenda Item: 18 

June 28, 2018 Board Annual Meeting 

Confirm date and time of next meeting—Chairperson Casey Peterson 

Recommended Action:  

Informational.  

The next board meeting will be held on Tuesday, September 18, beginning at 8:00 AM (Mountain 

Time). 

2018 Regular Board Schedule 

March 29, 2018 08:00 am (MT) 

June 28, 2018 08:00 am (MT) 

September 18, 2017 08:00 am (MT) 

December 13,  2018 09:00 am (MT), lunch provided 

South Dakota Science and Technology Authority 

Sanford Underground Research Facility 

Education & Outreach Building (large conference room) 

630 E. Summit Street, Lead SD 57754 

Questions? Contact Mandy Knight, mknight@sanfordlab.org 

Direct Line: 605.722.4022, Cell: 605.641.0475 

Page 139 of 144

mailto:mknight@sanfordlab.org


 

 

  

 

Page 140 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority Agenda Item: 19 

June 28, 2018 Annual Board Meeting  

Public Comments—Chairperson Casey Peterson 

Recommended Action:  

None. 

Page 141 of 144



Page 142 of 144



South Dakota Science and Technology Authority             Agenda Item: 20 

June 28, 2018 Annual Board Meeting  

 

Board Comments—Chairperson Casey Peterson 

 
 

 
Recommended Action:   

None. 

1. Dr. Ani Aprahamian 

2. Mr. Paul Christen 

3. Mr. Dana Dykhouse, Vice-Chairperson 

4. Ms. Pat Lebrun, Secretary-Treasurer 

5. Mr. Casey Peterson, Chairperson 

6. Dr. Jim Rankin, Ex-officio member 

7. Mr. Ron Wheeler, Vice-Chairperson 

8. Dr. Robert Wilson 

Page 143 of 144



Page 144 of 144


	SDSTA e-Board Packet–June 28, 2018
	Item 01. Call to Order
	Item 02. Approve Agenda
	2_Draft Agenda, v4.1

	Item 03. Approve Minutes
	3A_SDSTA Board Minutes 2018-0329 Final Draft
	3B_SDSTA Board Minutes 2018-0501 Final Draft

	Item 04. Conflict of Interest Disclosure
	Item 05. Grant Waiver or Decline to Grant Waiver
	Item 06. Adopt State Board of Internal Controls
	6_Draft SDSTA Code of Conduct and Conflict of Interest Policy to be approved

	Item 07. Audit Committee Members
	7B_Audit Committee Charter Updated Final 2014-0619

	Item 08. Financial Report
	8A_Financial Summaries May 2018
	8B1_FY2019 Budget Summary
	8B2_FY2019 CAPEX Budget
	8B3_FY2019 SDSTA Budget

	Item 09. Ex Dir Report
	9A_SB100_Records_Retention
	9B_Declaration of Surplus - Surplus Items 2018-0426

	Item 10. Lease for Lead City Shop
	10A_Lease Agreement
	10B_Exhibits A & B

	Item 11...Approval of FY19 ORM Intergovernmental Agreement
	11_FY19 Intergovernmental Agreement - to be approved

	Item 12. Annual Review of P&P incl Conflict of Interest Stmt
	12A1_Proposed Procedure for Public Comment Periods and Form_new to be approved 2018-0628
	12A2_Holiday Policy redlined to be approved
	12A3_Policy_Personnel Benefits updated to be approved 2018-0628 
	12A3_Policy_Photography and Video new final to be approved 2018-0628
	12A4_Policy_Reimbursement of Goods and Services new to be approved 2018-0628
	12B_Conflict of Interest Policy Statement 2018-0628

	Item 13. Executive Session
	Item 14. Report from Exec Session
	Item 15. Approve FRA MOU
	15_FRA-SDSTA MOU DRAFT 2018-0608 final

	Item 16. Report from Nominating Committee
	Item 17. Election of Officers
	Item 18. Date and Time of Next Mtg
	Item 19. Public Comments
	Item 20. Board Comments




